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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC BOARD 2018 

Office Bearers for season 2018 were: 

 

President      Bob Dwyer 

Secretary      Douglas Eggins (resigned 22 February 2018) 

      Frank Back (appointed 22 February 2018) 

Treasurer      Ian Bonnette 

Elected Members     Stuart Brown 

Richard Carmont 

Pieter Engelbrecht  

Adam Freier 

Ian Kellaway 

Brian O’Sullivan 

Simon Poidevin 

Stuart Rutherford  

John Tuxworth (resigned) 

Life Members Representative   Ian Kennedy 

General Manager    Travis Partridge 

Honorary Lawyer     James Glissan QC 

Patron      Jeffrey Sayle 

Attendance at Management Meetings: Since the 2017 AGM the Randwick District Rugby Union Football 

Club Inc Board has met 10 times up to 30 November 2018. Attendances to that date are: 

Bob Dwyer (9), Douglas Eggins (2) (resigned February 2018), Frank Back (8), Ian Bonnette (10), Stuart 

Brown (9), Richard Carmont (8), Pieter Engelbrecht (7), Adam Freier (9), Glen Joseph (2), Ian Kellaway 

(10), Brian O’Sullivan (8), Stuart Rutherford (9), Simon Poidevin (6), Ian Kennedy – Life Members nominee 

(9), Peter Court Life Members nominee (1), Owen Finegan (Club Coach 2018) (3), Ben McCormack (Club 

Coach appointed September 2018) (2). 
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Other officials: 

Events and Sponsorship  Melissa Stone 

Club Captains   Patrick Hodgetts, Declan O’Donahue 

Club Strength & Conditioning Coach                 Clint Hill 

Honorary Timekeepers           Mick Lewis, Chris Fraser 

Honorary Statistician           Ray Jennings 

Honorary Historian 

and Archivist                      Clarissa Luxford 

Honorary Ball Boy Captain    Dan Dowe 

Ball Kids Hugo Kulscar, Jack Garrett, Angus Sullivan, Edward Sullivan, 

Georgie Kiernan, Chiara Winn, Sean Foley, Cruze Clarkin, Harry 

Clarke, Kai Lancaster 

 

Medical Officer   Dr Paul Raftos  

 

Physiotherapist   Di Long 

Auditor    Ken Wright 

Website and Social Media  Clarissa Luxford 

Annual Report Committee  Doug Eggins, Ray Jennings, Clarissa Luxford, Bob Outterside 

Wicks TV    Donna McCullough, Montanna Clare 
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President’s Message 

2018 has been very much a mixed year - sometimes sad, sometimes elating, sometimes depressing, 

sometimes inspiring.  

We began the year on the most sad note, with the passing, during the off-season, of three great Randwick 

men – Peter Johnson, Ken Catchpole, Sir Nicholas Shehadie. All great men, great rugby men, great rugby 

players, Wallaby captains all. Our Club farewelled them from Coogee Oval with a moving ceremony before 

our first game of the season, with friends and families present – a sad but fitting tribute. Afterwards, in a 

quiet moment, Nick’s widow, Dame Marie Bashir, spoke privately to me. She said, “Bobby. Rugby is the 

greatest of all the brotherhoods.”  

An inspiring moment, indeed. 

At board level, we had similar emotions. Club Secretary, Doug Eggins, co-director, John Tuxworth and Life 

Members’ Representative, Peter Court, decided to call it a day after many, many years of fantastic service 

– although we still continued to call on them from time to time. We did, on the other side, gain the 

considerable talents of three more ex-Wicks in Frank Back, Pieter Englebrecht and Ian ‘Speed” Kennedy. 

We are singularly well served! 

On field, the season progressed in much the same way.  

With the grade teams, we were always impressed with their commitment and courage, elated with periods 

of genuine quality and sad, even depressed, at other times.  

With the colts teams, we were consistently elated and inspired with the quality and commitment across the 

board. They clearly personified my feelings about our club – “Randwick. Always determined, never daunted 

- inspired and inspiring!” 

All colts teams made the play-offs. 1sts and 2nds were both undefeated premiers. It doesn’t get much 

better than this. Yes, it does! Add the number of sons and grandsons of old Wicks players to the number of 

Wicks Academy and Junior Clubs’ players graduating through the ranks. It made us all feel very warm and 

fuzzy about our great Club. 

And so we move forward to next season with enthusiasm and ambition with quite a few significant changes. 

Owen Finegan is no longer there, of course, but I know that he will continue to contribute, hugely as 

always, with our wonderful Academy and our junior teams. 

Our beloved Club Patron, Jeffrey Leonard Sayle, has been taking an enforced rest, with a lengthy stay in 

hospital. At the time of writing, Sayley looked to be on the (perhaps long) road to recovery. Thank 

goodness, this occurred during the off-season. It would have been impossible to keep him away from 

Latham Park, Coogee Oval or from any away game, for any grade. Alan Jones accurately described 

Jeffrey, on air, as “the de facto father of every rugby union player in Australia.” He certainly has that role for 

every Randwick player, and we look forward to welcoming him ‘back on the paddock’, very soon. 

A new Club Coach, new to our Club, from the great Brothers Club in Brisbane (one great club to another), 

takes the reins and has already shown, in just a few short weeks, that his most impressive reputation and 

CV are well earned. We welcome Ben McCormack to this important role, congratulate him on his 

appointment and promise him all the support that we can muster. 
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Hadley Jackson moves up into the 1st Grade Coach role after an incredibly successful ‘apprenticeship’ with 

both our colts and grade teams. We similarly congratulate Hadley and promise him the same unwavering 

support.  

A new Player Development program also, under Anthony Cutrupi, will be seen in force already. Anthony 

has seriously impressive credentials with St. George Illawarra RL in both strength & conditioning and injury 

rehabilitation and is a most welcome and exciting addition. 

If we add these newcomers to our own Diane Long, Dr. Paul Raftos, and Dr. Adrian Cohen, I am most 

confident that our player welfare and development is in the very best of hands. This is, without a doubt, a 

medical and physiotherapy team to be proud of. 

Travis Partridge, our General Manager, and Melissa Stone, in Sponsorship, Marketing & Events, continue 

to make major contributions off the field. Our sponsors, particularly our major strategic partners, 

consistently regale me with most positive comment about the fantastic support and contribution of this pair. 

We tend to ignore this off-field work that is absolutely vital to our future.  Travis and Mel don’t. Keep up the 

good work. 

Last, and by no means least, I want to thank our board. They are talented and committed, Randwick people 

to their core.   

I make the following comment in the most heartfelt manner,  

“I am hugely proud to be associated with this group of people.”  

Sincerely, 

Bob Dwyer 

 
 
 

 
 

Club President Bob Dwyer at training 
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Representative Scene  
 
Randwick continued its outstanding contribution to the Wallabies, Super 15, Provincial Teams and 

other representative teams. We congratulate these players on their achievements in 2018.  

Wallabies  
Ned Hanigan, Sekope Kepu, Peter Samu, Rob Simmons, Lukhan Tui 
 
Waratahs  
Ned Hanigan, Andrew Kellaway, Sekope Kepu, Mitch Short, Rob Simmons 
 
 
Melbourne Rebels 
Esei Ha’angana, Harrison Goddard, David Horwitz, Henry Hutchison 
 
Queensland Reds 
Lukhan Tui 
 
Canturbury Crusaders 
Peter Samu 
 

 
National Rugby Championship 2018 
Cameron Betham, Sam Croke, Ben Donaldson, Sam Figg, Harrison Goddard, Will Harrison, Jack 

Hayson, Jack Johnson, Latu Latinipulu, Christian Poidevin, Kiernan Rabie, James Ramm, Mitch 

Short, and David Vea 

 
Commonwealth Games 2018 Australian 7s  
Ben O’Donnell 
 

 
 

Randwick Rugby training with the Aussie 7s
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Best and Fairest 
First Grade  Jack Johnson 
Second Grade Ikapote Tupai 
Third Grade  Sam Connor 
Fourth Grade  Dion Narayan 
Colts First Grade Christian Poidevin 
Colts Second Grade Matt Orpen 
Colts Third Grade  Guy Beynon 
 
 
Randwick Rugby Trophy for Best and Fairest Player in the Club – Jack Johnson 
 
Ron Don Memorial Trophy for Most Improved Player in the Club – Lewis Taie 
 
Col Windon Trophy (Best back rower in the Club) – Jack Johnson 
 
Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy for Best Club Man in Fourth Grade  - Sonny Satuala 
 
Rookie of the year  - Justin Cooper 
 
Aiden Wilson Memorial Colts Clubman of the Year – Joe Feltis 
 
Laurie Augue Memorial Trophy for the Grade team that scores the most number of tries in a 
Season:  
Second Grade – 62 Tries 
 
The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy  
The Recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-mates for his commitment to fitness, 
willingness to learn, loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to mastering the 
fundamentals of the Randwick Brand of Rugby - 2018 Recipient:  Ned Robinson 
 
CH Towers Trophy for season's leading try scorer - Christian Yassmin 11 tries 
 
Club’s most valuable player – Cameron Betham 
 
Coach's best all-rounder on and off the Field – Anthony Vasilis 
 

 
Adam Freier, Jack Johnson and Patrick Phibbs 
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Sponsors  
 
Without the generosity and support of our Club sponsors we would struggle to survive from year to 

year; our sincere appreciation and gratitude to all of our Club sponsors below.  

Suttons    Nick Fradd and Pat Borg 
The University of NSW  Neil Morris 
Randwick Rugby Foundation  Bob Coombs 
Coogee Beach Club   Bill Clegg 
ADCO     Richard Carmont 
Apricity Finance   Linden Toll  
Beastwear   
Bell Potter    Simon Poidevin 
Bendigo Bank Clovelly  Nicola Powell   
Cartwright Insurance  Geoff Cartwright 
Castlereagh Imaging 
Coates Hire    David McAllister 
Coogee Bay Hotel   Chris Cheung 
Coogee SLSC   Dave Park 
Eastside Physiotherapy  Diane Long 
ESV     Edwina Ring 
Field to Fork    The Horwitz family 
FTI Consulting   Quentin Olde 
Girvan Waugh   Michael Girvan and Warwick Waugh 
Helpwise    Peter Needham 
KMB Business Advisors  Ian Kellaway 
Maloney’s Grocers   Jo and Sebastian Matthews 
Neck Safe Rugby   Dr Adrian Cohen 
Nura Gili UNSW   Roger Carter 
Paddington Prestige  Peter Robinson 
Rohrig  Constructions  Glenn Rohrig 
Sphere Communications  Paris Cockinos 
Victor Sports    David Goodman 
Walsh's Pharmacy   Richard and Phillip Walsh  
      
The Randwick Rugby Club is proud to be associated with all sponsors and appreciates them being 
part of the Randwick family. The Club looks forward to seeing all sponsors return in 2019.  
 
 

                                     
 
 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

 

10 
 

            
 

                
 
  

                
 

                
              

     
 

                                                                                           
                              
  
                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

 

11 
 

The Club also expresses its appreciation to:  
 

 Lindsay Shurey, Mayor of Randwick City Council, the Councillors, Ray Brownlee, the 

General Manager of Randwick Council and his staff. The Council’s continuing support in 

relation to Coogee Oval, Latham Park and Nagle Park is greatly appreciated.  

 The Coaches and Managers throughout the Season: Owen Finegan, Patrick Phibbs,  Nick 

Hensley, Brad Bishop, Matthew Buckland, Peter Dumbleton, Dave Habler, Hadley Jackson, 

Richard Stanford, John Catterson, Ben Rutherford, Tom Fahy, Ian Holder, Martin Kiernan, 

Mick Lewis, Nick Kellaway, Tim Clifford, Peter Meagher, Graham Neville, Danny Grant, Joe 

Picone, Jeffrey Sayle, Mark Giacheri, Jack Roach, Allen Stutchbury, Michael Clarke, Kimon 

Tellidis, Bill Davies, Joel Rivers, James Lancaster, Matthew Bowman. 

 The Club’s medical team under Dr Paul Raftos  

 Headed by Diane Long, the Club’s physiotherapists including Louisa McGinness and Michael 
Broadbent 

 Dr Adrian Cohen for his selfless commitment with the continuation and follow-up of the 
Concussion Study 

 Football Support Staff under the direction of Head Trainer Clint Hill 

 Ground announcers including Montanna Clare and Ian Kellaway 

 Coogee Oval Match Day Controllers: Grade - Dan Dowe  Colts - Chris Fraser 

 Match day assistants Doug Eggins, Ian Bonnette, Ian Kennedy, Gina Whitehouse, Katherine 
White, Mick White 

 Clarissa Luxford who prepares the Club’s weekly newsletter and manages the website 

 Photographers Samantha Dennewald, Brett Dooley, David Lyon, Donna McCulloch and Ric 
McLallen 

 Wicks TV camera and editing crew Donna McCullough and Montanna Clare  

 Coogee Surf Life-Saving Club for use of facilities and support 

 David Caple, President of Randwick Rugby Juniors and his committee as well as the 
Presidents of the Randwick Junior Clubs  

 To the Club’s loyal supporters that continue to turn up year after year and make Coogee Oval 
such a fantastic place to play rugby.  
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           Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc  

2018 Treasurers Report 

 

The attached Profit & Loss report and Balance Sheet for the financial year ended 30th September 2018 

continues the improved financial consistency developed by the Club over the past 5 years. 

The Club’s results show an operating profit $54,447 (2016 $29,828), an improvement of 83% driven by 

improved cash sponsorship income while gate and concession income increased by 25% and 16% 

respectively. Over the last three (3) years 2016/17/18 we have seen a resurgent Shute Shield competition 

with patronage increasing and the flow on assisting concessions. Gate income has improved 49% while 

concessions have increased 47%. 

The Club produced a Net Financial Profit after depreciation ($12,191) of $42,256 (2017 $19,828), an 

increase of 113%. 

The Club continues to improve its strong financial position with cumulative retained funds including 

reserves standing at $236,916. Contra Income has again been reduced this year to reflect more closely 

with the services provided. This reduction of $20,000 is reflected in the total sponsorship income and 

distorts the comparison with 2017. Please refer to the table below for actual year on year comparison. 

The improved performance in 2018 is a result of increased sponsorship, gate, concessions and control of 

costs as against budget. Net income (after expenses) from functions was slightly down this year after an 

improved offering in the Club’s awards night. Ladies Day continued its resounding success and we thank 

the Coogee Pavilion for supporting this function.  

Improved sponsorship renewals from Suttons City Hyundai and The Randwick Club trading as the 

Coogee Beach Club is testament to the support our patrons and members have brought to these 

partnerships. The Beach Club is currently undergoing a facelift and offers us an exciting time for a new 

home base in 2019. This year we welcomed Linden Toll and his debtor and cashflow finance services 

company Apricity Finance who sponsored the corporate lunch. We also thank Glen of Rohrig 

Constructions for increased involvement.  

Without the ongoing contribution, from these new sponsors and existing sponsors, University of New 

South Wales, Rohrig Constructions, Maloney Grocers, ADCO, Cartwright Insurance, ESV 

Accounting, Bendigo Clovelly Community Bank, FTI Consulting, Coates Hire, Girvan Waugh, Bell 

Potter, Victor Sports Tapes, Beastwear, Building Partners, KMB Business Advisors, Paddington 

Prestige Motors, Nura Gili (UNSW), Walsh Pharmacy and Sphere Communications we would not be 

able to represent the Randwick District with such distinction. 

A special mention must go to the Randwick City Council for its ongoing support at Coogee Oval. 2019 will 

see the introduction of a new scoreboard and refurbishment of the changing rooms at Coogee Oval 

A special mention must also go to sponsor and leading ground-breaking medical team lead by Dr Paul 

Raftos, Maroubra Medical Centre, Eastside Physiotherapy Di Long and Neck Safe Rugby Dr Adrian 

Cohen who are tireless in their support and efforts to provide a safe playing environment for the players 

and the development of a world leading concussion testing and treatment program.  
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As previously mentioned gate and concessional income continued to improve in 2018 especially with the 

increased interest patrons are showing in “Club” rugby. Revenue from Coogee Oval increased from 

$145,757 to $175,599 (+20%).  

Our thanks go to Field to Fork (Paula & Gary Horwitz and Paul Miller) for their tireless efforts in running 

the provision of food and beverages on grade and colts match days. Their efforts along with the support 

from Coogee Bay Hotel as our beverage sponsor has played a large part in us providing a better 

experience for all our patrons. Their support and dedication is very much appreciated. 

Costs have generally been held to budget and are in line with the previous year after taking into account 

increased signage costs, a bad debt and provisions for future tours and football operating expenses. 

The following table compares key financial data. 

 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Sponsorship Cash $409,918 $405,332 $342,500 $274,000 $159,640 

RR Foundation  $65,000 $65,000 $65,000 $100,000 $200,000 

Grants ARU/NSWRU Nil Nil Nil Nil $39,000 

Net Fundraising 
Profit 

$57,396 $65,117 $73,119 $57,759 $31,847 

Operating Profit  $54,447 $29,828 $15,664 $(88,234) $11,934 

Net Profit  $42,256 $19,828 $5,664 $(78,234) $6,934 

   

We thank the Randwick Rugby Foundation for its continued support and contribution throughout the 

district in 2018. The RRF provided the seniors with $65,000 and the junior body with $35,000. 

The Board thanks our loyal sponsors and donors for their continued financial support.  

Special thanks go to those who contributed monies to the scholarship fund and to those who individually 

donated money to the Club’s tax deductible “Randwick Rugby Development Fund administered through 

the Australian Sports Foundation. 

Without this ongoing support, the Club would not be able to invest in the development of our colts and the 

future school’s program. 

The board would also like to thank all our loyal volunteers, coaching staff, support staff, representative 

players and supports who faithfully assist at the junior club level, coaching academy and who come to each 

match. 

I recommend to you for approval the attached Profit and Loss Report, Balance Sheet and Annual Report for 

the 12 months, financial year ending 30th September 2018.   

Ian R Bonnette 

Honorary Treasurer 

Randwick District Rugby Union Football club Inc.  
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Income and Expenditure Statement for the Period Ended 30 September 2018 

 Note 
2018  

$ 

2017 

$ 

Income  

Sponsorship  2 574,918 590,332 

Revenue - Coogee Oval                               3 175,599 145,757 

Player Subscriptions  55,899 43,491 

Fundraising Functions  131,333 133,625 

Merchandise Revenue  6,330 1,036 

Interest Received  408 342 

Other income  4 - 1,154 

Total Income  944,487 915,737 

   

Expenses  

Coogee Oval  5 73,531 59,646 

Latham Park  6 20,445 22,024 

Player Operation Costs  7 198,817 248,619 

Coaching Costs  8 125,628 110,552 

Marketing & Fundraising - Direct  9 73,937 68,508 

Marketing - Sponsorship Servicing  10 22,855 27,978 

Merchandise Costs  11,648 900 

Sponsorship Contra Costs  11 100,000 120,000 

Administration Expenses  12 263,180 227,682 

Depreciation  13 12,191 10,000 

Total Expenses  902,231 895,909 

   

Operating Surplus/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Items  42,256 19,828 

 

Operating Profit/(Loss) after Extraordinary Items 42,256 19,828 

   

Retained Funds - Opening  194,660 167,548 

Surplus/(loss) Available for Appropriation  42,256 27,112 

Retained Funds at End of Year  236,916 194,660 
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2018 Financial Reports 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2018 

 NOTE 2018 

$ 

2017 

$  

Current Assets  

Cash  1 363,333 153,949 

Trade and Other Receivables 14 116,253 157,292 

Prepayments   - - 

GST Paid   13,470 10,097 

Total Current Assets  493,056 321,338 

   

Non-Current  Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment  15 11,119 8,436 

Total Non-Current Assets  11,119 8,436 

   

Total Assets  504,175 329,774 

   

Current Liabilities 

Payables  16 181,947 78,696 

GST on supplies   32,187 17,027 

Provisions  17 53,125 39,391 

Total Current Liabilities  267,259 135,114 

   

Total Liabilities  267,259 135,114 

   

Net Assets  236,916 194,660 

   

 

Accumulated Funds  209,804 167,548 

Reserves  18 27,112 27,112 

Total Equity  236,916 194,660 
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 September 2018  

   

Retained Earnings  Reserves  Total  

$  $  $  

Balance as at 30th September 2016 147,720 27,112 174,832 

Profit/Transfers  19,828 - 19,828 

Balance as at 30th September 2017  167,548 27,112 194,660 

Profit/Transfers 42,256 - 42,256 

Balance as at 30th September 2018  209,804 27,112 236,916 

 

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 September 2018 

2018  2017 

$  $  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

Cash Receipts From Operations  881,745 720,017 

Cash Payments in the Course of Operations  (657,895) (758,870) 

Interest Received 408 342 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating 
Activities  

224,258 (39,645) 

   

 

Payments for Property Plant Equipment  (14,874) (8,757) 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities  - - 

   

 

Provisions and Reserves  - - 

Repayment of Loan  - - 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  - - 

   

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held  209,384 (48,402) 

Cash at the Beginning of the Year  153,949 202,351 

Cash at the End of the Year  363,333 153,949 
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  

2018  2017  

$  $  

 Reconciliation of Cash  

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial position as follows:  

Bank - Seniors  284,861 125,886 

Cash Management  75,941 25,533 

Macquarie Bank  2,531 2,530 

Total Cash  363,333 153,949 

   

 

Surplus/(loss) from Ordinary Activities  42,256 19,828 

 

Depreciation and Impairment Charge  12,191 10,000 

 

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 41,039 (82,445) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables  103,251 9,546 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (3,373) 4,553 

Increase/(Decrease) in GST Payable  15,160 (1,133) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  13,734 6 

Cash Flows from Operations  224,258 (39,645) 
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 September 2018 

 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies  

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales.  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity. The financial report has 
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Association Incorporation Act New South 
Wales and the following Australian Accounting Standards:  

AAS 5 : Materiality  

AAS 8: Events Occurring After Reporting date  

No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied.  

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does 
not take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuations 
of non-current assets.  

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless 
otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is a tax exempt body  

(b) Fixed Assets  

Plant & Equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is 
reviewed annually by the Association to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from 
those assets.  

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the 
association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

(c) Investments  

Non-current investments are measured on the cost basis.  

The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount of these investments. The recoverable amount is assessed from 
the quoted market value for shares in listed companies, if applicable, or such other criteria as 
determined by the Committee.  

(d) Employee Entitlements  

Provision is made for the Association’s liability for employee entitlements arising from services 
rendered by employees to balance date. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within one 
year together with entitlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave which 
will be settled after one year, have been measured at their nominal amount. Other employee 
entitlements payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated 
future cash outflows to be made for those entitlements.  

Contributions are made by the Association to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as 
expenses when incurred.  
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (cont). 

 

 (e) Cash  

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, at banks or on 
deposit.  

(f) Revenue  

Revenue from the receipt of grants is recognised by the stipulated dates laid down by the 
supplier of the funds; revenue from the supply of services is taken into account when the service 
is undertaken; revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to 
customers.  

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets.  

Dividend revenue is recognised when the Association has established that it has a right to 
receive a dividend.  

 

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part 
of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are 
shown inclusive of GST.  
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

2018  2017  

$  $  

NOTE 2 - Sponsorship  

Sponsorship Cash  409,918 405,332 

Randwick Foundation Grant  65,000 65,000 

Contra Sponsorship  100,000 120,000 

Total Sponsorship  574,918 590,332 

   

NOTE 3 - Coogee Oval 

Gate 88,310 70,440 

Concessions 87,289 75,317 

Total Coogee Oval 175,599 145,757 

   

NOTE 4 - Other Income 

Miscellaneous  - 1,154 

Prize Money (ARU Sevens) - - 

Total Other Income  - 1,154 

   

NOTE 5 - Coogee 

Rental  10,077 8,509 

Match Day Running Costs - Gate 

                                           - Concessions                                             

23,638 

39,816 

13,308 

37,829 

Total Coogee Oval  73,531 59,646 

   

NOTE 6 - Latham Park 

Rental  18,894 16,647 

Repairs & Maintenance    - Field 

                                         - Gym 

179 

1,372 

1,783 

3,594 

Total Latham Park  20,445 22,024 
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

NOTE 7 - Player Operation Costs   

Player Expenses - Touring Fund 10,000 10,044 

Footballs & Equipment  1,700 2,663 

Insurance  12,409 12,464 

Laundry & Cleaning 3,418 1,744 

Medical Fees - Doctors/Physio  36,281 28,934 

Medical Tape  13,479 13,675 

Player Rewards  1,313 4,061 

Scholarships 62,190 84,570 

Sundries  5,046 - 

Transport 5,080 4,659 

Levies - ARU 8,655 6,364 

Uniforms  33,844 79,441 

Tournaments & Pre Season 5,402 - 

Total Player Operation Costs  198,817 248,619 

 

NOTE 8 - Coaching  

Motor Vehicle Expenses  - 2,334 

Schools & Junior Clubs  103 87 

Trainers & Coaching Consultants 102,126 87,722 

Videos & Analysis 23,399 20,409 

Total Coaching Costs  125,628 110,552 

   

NOTE 9 - Marketing 

Functions  73,937 68,508 

Total Marketing Costs  73,937 68,508 

   

NOTE 10 - Sponsorship Services 

Support 22,855 27,486 

Tickets  - 492 

Total Sponsorship Servicing Expenses 22,855 27,978 

NOTE 11 -  

Contra Sponsorship Expenses  100,000 120,000 
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2018 Financial Reports 

  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633   

   

   

NOTE 12 - Administration 

Accounting Fees 8,231 8,000 

Audit Fees  1,850 1,800 

Bad Debts 10,000 1,500 

Bank Fees 446 364 

Employment Costs  185,767 182,472 

Insurances  7,946 8,067 

IT and Communications  7,791 6,344 

Donations  1,273 - 

Motor Vehicle Expenses  7,277 6,857 

Printing Postage & Stationery  5,727 4,331 

General Expenses  18,178 4,615 

Repairs & Maintenance 4,096 - 

Subscriptions 1,063 953 

Telephone 3,535 2,379 

Total Administration Expenses  263,180 227,682 

   

 

General Depreciation  12,191 10,000 

Total Depreciation  12,191 10,000 

   

 

Trade Debtors  

Accrued income 

116,253 

- 

157,292 

- 

Total Trade and Other Debtors  116,253 157,292 
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2018 Financial Reports    

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

NOTE 15- Property Plant and Equipment  

First Aid Room at Cost  8,094 8,094 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  8,094 (7,709) 

Total First Aid Room  - 385 

   

Plant & Equipment - at Cost  54,631 51,991 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (51,668) (45,642) 

Total Plant & Equipment  2,963 6,349 

   

Furniture & Fittings - at Cost  12,234 - 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (4,078) - 

Total Furniture & Fittings  8,156 - 

 

Gymnasium Equipment at Cost  33,393 33,393 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (33,393) (31,691 ) 

Total Gymnasium Equipment  - 1,702 

   

Sponsors Stand at Cost  7,254 7,254 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (7,254) (7,254) 

Total Sponsors Stand  - - 

Total Plant and Equipment  11,119 8,436 

 

NOTE 16-Payables  

Trade & Other Creditors  75,204 13,032 

Payg Withholding Tax  3,515 6,612 

Accrued Expenses 

Audit Fees 

101,278 

1,950 

57,052 

2,000 

Total Payables  181,947 78,696 

 

NOTE 17 - Provisions 

Tour Provision 25,000 15,000 

Annual Leave 28,125 24,391 

Total Provisions  53,125 39,391 
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2018 Financial Reports    

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633   

   

   

NOTE 18 - Reserves 

  

Opening Balance  16,365 16,365 

Net Income/ Expenditure  - - 

Closing Balance  16,365 16,365 

   

Opening Balance  10,747 10,747 

Net Income/ (Expenditure)  - - 

Closing Balance  10,747 10,747 

   

Total Reserves  27,112 27,112 
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MEAGHER, HOWARD & WRIGHT      Suite 506 
CERTIFIED PRACTISING ACCOUNTANTS      Level  5 / 55 Grafton St 

ABN 42 664 097 441                BONDI JUNCTION NSW 2022 
                                    PO Box 653       

                              BONDI JUNCTION NSW 1355         
   

PARTNERS    FINANCIAL PLANNING                         
K.J. WRIGHT J.P. M.COMM. F.C.P.A  MARK  MAYCOCK J.P. 
G. MIDDLETON B.COMM. ACA                  Phone: 02 9387 8988 

ASSOCIATE          Fax: 02 9387 8388 

L.J. HOWARD O.A.M. J.P. B Ec. F.C.P.A.       ken@mhw.net.au 
 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

Independent Audit Report to The Members of Randwick District Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc  

 

Report on the Financial Report  

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of 
Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 
September 2018, and the income and expenditure statement, a summary of significant 
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the statement by members of the committee.  

Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report  

The committee of the association is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, which form part of the financial report, are consistent with the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales and are 
appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee's responsibilities also include 
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the circumstances.  

Auditor's Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion 
is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate 
to meet the needs of the members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
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an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
report.  

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the 
committee's financial reporting under the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales. We 
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report 
to which it relates to any person other than the members, or for any purpose other than that for 
which it was prepared.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  

Independence  

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional ethical pronouncements.  

 

 

Auditor's Opinion  

In our opinion, the financial report of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. presents 
fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc. as of 30 September 2018 and of its financial performance for the year then ended in 
accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  

 

Name of Firm:  Meagher Howard & Wright  

Name of Partner: Ken Wright  

Address:  Suite 506, 55 Grafton Street Bondi Junction NSW 2022 

Signed:   

Dated this                      day of                                        2018  

 

 

NSWJRU State Championships   
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2018 Financial Reports  

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

 

 

Statement by Members of the Committee  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this 
special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies 
outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.  

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 2 to 6:  

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union 
Football Club Inc. as at 30 September 2018 and its performance for the year ended on that 
date.  

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Randwick District 
Rugby Union Football Club Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.  

The statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and 
on behalf of the Committee by:  

President: ___________________________________ R. Dwyer 

 

Treasurer: ___________________________________Ian Bonnette  

 

 

Mitch Short
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LIFE MEMBERS ASSOCIATION REPORT 

 

On behalf of the current members of the Life Members Association, I congratulate and acknowledge the 

achievements of all of the playing group for 2018 especially both Premiership winning teams Colts I and 

Colts II. Hopefully their success will lay the foundation for a successful 2019 season in all grades. 

The season itself got off to a sombre occasion at the first home game of the season when we unfortunately 

celebrated the passing of three of our greatest players and clubmen in Sir Nicholas Shehadie, Ken 

Catchpole and Peter Johnson. A fitting tribute was paid on the day with rugby jumpers painted on the 

playing service with their names and playing numbers on the back and a minute’s silence was held in 

respect of their passing. 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie, was a Life Member of the Randwick Club, a former Wallaby and former Lord Mayor 

of Sydney and is recognised as the person responsible for the formation of the Rugby World Cup in 1987 

and its continuing success every four years on. 

Ken Catchpole is widely regarded as Australia’s greatest ever player, the world’s best halfback and an 

ornament to the game. His playing companion Peter Johnson is also highly regarded as one of the very 

best hookers to have played the game. May they all Rest in Peace. 

The Association held monthly meetings throughout the year and was asked by the Board to this year help 

supervise the setting up of Coogee Oval for home games by supervising the players rostered for that day to 

erect signage, on field markers and hessian around the fence. I am pleased to report that everyone fulfilled 

that role admirably. 

During the course of the season there were a number of exchanges of opinions and suggestions from the 

Association to the Board on issues the Life Members thought would improve the Club’s performances, 

presentation and any other issues considered worthy of debate. Once again we were guests of the Board in 

the Sponsors area for one of the games and we were grateful and enjoyed meeting and interacting with the 

Sponsors and Board Members. 

New Life Members 

At the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Club, two long term players and coaches in Mark Giacheri and 

Stu Wheeler were elected as Life Members of the Club. Both have performed outstanding service to the 

Club and we should congratulate them on their election to the Life Members Association. 

2019 Season 

We wish all the players and coaching and administration staff a successful season in 2019 

Ian Kennedy A.P.M. 

Chairman 
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The RDRUFC extends its condolences to the families of  

 

Peter Johnson, Ken Catchpole, Sir Nicholas Shehadie*, Cameron Lyon, Sheila Picone, Geoff Martin, 

Maureen Cartwright 

* Life Member 

 
 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie 
 
 
Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Elected Life Members 

 
Life Members Elected Prior to 1947 

HW Baker* 1931 MM Atkins* 1941 

JM Dunningham* 1931 CH Towers* 1942 

NE Eglese* 1931 CR Davidson* 1942 

LB Callaghan* 1932 JRL Palfreyman* 1945 

JA Rigney* 1932 EK Dobbs* 1945 

FW Meagher* 1937   

  
Life Members Elected 1947-1969 

JF Lane* 1950 FC Thornley* 1958 

V Ford* 1951 HJC Kahl* 1961 

W Rowney* 1958 J O’Shea* 1965 

  
 

Life Members Elected 1970-1979 

KS Windon* 1970 JJ Hovey* 1975 

H Stephen* 1974 R Outterside 1976 

DC Furness* 1975 RW Meagher* 1979 
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Life Members Elected 1980-2016 

JM McCulloch*   1982     LW Argue*  2001 

RSF Dwyer   1983    JB Casamento 2001 

JL Sayle   1985    RJ Willey  2005   

PK Court   1986    G Karras  2007  

IM Kennedy   1989    P Antoniades  2008 

PM Willcox*   1991    T G Evans  2008 

JM Maxwell   1993    DC Long  2010 

J Cotis*   1994    WA Wheeler  2011 

AA Gaffney   1994    AD James  2011 

WT Outterside*  1994    DP Habler  2012 

DE Henry   1997    DS Eggins  2014 

W Hope   1997    T McMahon  2014 

V Singer   1997    SP Poidevin  2014 

CJ Windon*   1997    PN Raftos  2015 

KAP Phibbs   1998    R Curtis  2016 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie* 1998     J Dubos  2016 

TW Reid *    2001    SA Wheeler  2017 

JR Murray*   2005    M Giachieri  2017 

      * Denotes Deceased Life Members 
 
Current Life Members 
 
 
R Outterside   1976    P Antoniades            2008 
RSF Dwyer   1983    TG Evans  2008 
JL Sayle   1985    DC Long  2010 
PK Court   1986    WA Wheeler  2011 
IM Kennedy   1989    AD James  2011 
JM Maxwell   1993    DP Habler  2012 
AA Gaffney   1994    DS Eggins  2014 
DE Henry   1997    T McMahon  2014 
W Hope   1997    SP Poidevin  2014 
V Singer   1997    PN Raftos  2015 
KAP Phibbs   1998    R Curtis  2016 
J B Casamento  2001    J Dubos  2016 
RJ Willey   2005    R Curtis  2016 
G Karras   2007    SA Wheeler  2017    
       M Giachieri  2017   
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Randwick Rugby Foundation Report 

Our recent 2018 AGM marked the end of an era. 

Peter Sweeney, our Chairman, retired as did Jeff Sayle and Peter Court; all have been made 

Honorary Governors. 

For those who are not aware Peter had a double lung transplant a couple of years ago and he has 

been a major worker for the Randwick Rugby family for decades. Peter in fact was largely 

responsible for negotiating the large price for the old Randwick Rugby Club building and also in 

saving most of the funds which still remain in the Foundation. 

Our current Foundation Directors and Members are Jon Collins our new Chairman, Bob Coombs 

Managing Director, Alan Gaffney, Doug Eggins Secretary, Brian O’Sullivan Chairman of 

Investments, Des Sims, Michael Jorgenson, Michael Daley, Ian North, Quentin Olde, David Park, 

Frank back, Lorraine Gaffney and Allen Stutchbury who are all working hard to ensure that the 

Randwick Rugby family prospers.  

I talk of the Randwick Rugby family because our support is to the main RDRUF Club and also to 

Randwick juniors and to Coogee SLSC, all of whom are responsible for looking after and nurturing 

our children in rugby, life-saving and producing wonderful Australian citizens.  

Since 2004 the RRF has donated over $2million to those various recipients. 

We believe in total transparency and as such I can reveal that we have about $2.5 million invested 

with Macquarie Bank with a strategy of ‘protection of capital’ and have made profits almost every 

year since 2004. 

We also have the good fortune to have some great advisors including Simon Poidevin, John 

Tuxworth, Ian North and Brian O’Sullivan to guide us. 

We have budgeted to provide grants totalling $100000 for 2019 and if the economy improves we 

may be able to increase this. 

Bob Coombs 
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General Manager’s Report – Travis Partridge 

 

2018 was a year of change and transition for the Galloping Greens. Nick Ryan (Director of Rugby), 

Shannon Fraser (1st Grade Coach) and Mick Stephens (Head of High Performance) moved elsewhere to 

new roles. Many thanks goes to Nick, Shannon and Mick for their contributions over the previous seasons.  

Our Club is based on strong junior foundations; the Junior Clubs continue to do a terrific job in our District. 

Many thanks goes to David Caple who does an incredible job with our Junior clubs, a task which is difficult 

but hugely important to our game growing in our area. Jim Dubos continues his great work with the 

Academy and numbers continue to grow. This year, the senior Club integrated with the Academy sessions 

at Coogee Beach on a monthly basis linking the Academy and senior players.  

The Women’s game continues to go from strength to strength and this year the Randwick Magic continued 

their growth and success as a leading Women’s 7s club. Plans are in place to expand to a 15s product 

through 2019 and ensure that we continue to create a pathway for girls and women in our district to 

participate at 7s or 15s level. Grateful thanks goes to Fidel Tukel who continues to work tirelessly to ensure 

the girls in our district have a pathway to participate in the game.  

A new season, with new coaching staff provided a good change for players and coaches. Owen Finegan 

took the reins of 1st Grade and Club Coach role after assisting Shannon the previous season. A new 

coaching roster and new approach in pre-season led to a positive feeling leading into Round 1 vs Gordon 

at Coogee. A tough season for the 1st Grade squad on the field resulted however not without plenty of 

learning and development which should put the players in good stead for 2019. 

Our Colts program continues to shine with our 1st and 2nd Colts going undefeated and securing the Colts 

Club Championship. Nick Hensley transitioned into the Colts Director role in 2018 and worked tirelessly to 

ensure our success over the previous seasons continued. Assisted by Hadley Jackson coaching 1st Colts 

the program was as strong as ever and we look forward to consolidating even further in 2019. With a host 

of players moving up to Grade in 2019 we are excited to see the impact the outstanding group of Colts 

players can make at Grade level.  

As always our football program is backed by core pillars which continue to drive our on field success. Our 

scholarship program continues to thrive with the support of UNSW and the supporters of our Club 

Scholarship program. Our aim is to provide every player with an opportunity to study and improve himself 

off the field and we will maintain to continue this moving forward. We have recorded 54 players who have 

benefited from the Randwick UNSW enterprise in the past four seasons, a significant partnership that 

continues to grow and provide our players with a world class education at UNSW. In 2018 significant 

contributions from Greg Bell and Anthony Bell will enable us to continue to grow our Club Scholarship 

program into the future. 

Our valued relationship with Suttons City continues to grow with the extension of the partnership for a 

further two years. This will extend our major sponsor partnership to the end of 2020. Many thanks go to 

Nick Fradd and Pat Borg for their continued support of Randwick Rugby. 

Randwick Labour Club acquired the premises at the Coogee Bowling Club in 2018 and renamed the club 

“Coogee Beach Club”. This provided all Randwick players, supporters, staff and sponsors a welcome place 
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to go after each match and the new direction proved a huge success. We look forward to continuing this 

relationship into the future to further establish a home for Randwick Rugby.  

As with any rugby club we couldn’t operate without the services of our volunteer base. From coaching staff 

to match day staff, the volunteer base continues to fuel and drive our club and without the hours of service 

from so many we would struggle. A big thank you goes to all our volunteers; the board, coaching staff, 

managers, match day support and club medical team. 

2019 promises to be a very exciting year with an influx of Colts players through to our Grade program. We 

look forward to the continued support of our fans and the dedication of our playing group in 2019.  

Travis Partridge General Manager 

     

Nick Kellaway    David Horwitz Nura Gili Day 

                

Jeffrey Sayle and Joe Picone         Randwick Mayor Lindsay Shurey with Randwick Magic 
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First Grade Report 

 

Coach:   Owen Finegan 

Assistant Coaches: Patrick Phibbs, Richard Stanford 

Manager:    Peter Meagher 

Captains:   Lachlan Anderson, David Horwitz, Jack Johnson, Ben Starkey 

 

The Randwick Rugby Club has a steep tradition of winning. Given that we played in only four finals 
matches this year, compared with all seven in 2017 in totality it was a disappointing year for our 
grade teams. This season at the Club we won two premierships in 1st and 2nd Grade colts 
compared to last season where 3rd grade colts were the only team to bring home some 
silverware. 
 
One can only be excited after the performance of our colts and with over forty players eligible for 
grade next year. A greater playing base makes the goal of winning premierships and the Club 
championship is our goal as we move forward. 
 
Although there were several pleasing components of our 2018 season, we are not satisfied and 
we have taken the opportunity to reflect upon the areas we need to improve and identify the 
people, the skills and the resources we need to help us go to another level in 2019. 
 
The 2018 campaign began in early November 2017 on the new synthetic oval at Latham Park. We 
assembled a group of motivated men, encouraged a culture of improvement and accountability 
and attempted to stimulate a positive team identity for the game, the Randwick Rugby Club and 
community. 
 
The pre-season offered a significant opportunity to improve our physical condition, further enhance 
the technical skill of the group and to build a strong whole of club culture across our Academy, 
Warriors, Colts and Grade players. 
 
We learned a harsh lesson or two throughout the season with too many close losses, but always 
managed to learn from it and come back better the next week. Halfway through the year, we had a 
rising injury toll and our performances remained strong but were punctuated with periods of 
inconsistency with several close losses, drawn games and games snatched on or after the full-
time siren. 
 
We were acutely aware that the 1-2 percenters of performance really mattered and we could not 
afford the lapses in concentration that allowed several games to slip out of our hands. The 
commitment and the raw talent of this group was pleasing despite our season ending prematurely. 
 
The leadership of the teams changed several times during the year with Lachlan Anderson, Ben 
Starkey, David Horwitz and finally Jack Johnson all providing stability. Despite our lack of 
consistency in an environment that unfortunately kept changing through injury, these men led us 
admirably. 
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Several players got an early taste of Shute Shield Rugby. The only way to convert inexperience 
into experience is by gaining the opportunity to learn on the run and through a willingness to risk 
failure to achieve success. 
 
Throughout the 2018 season the Club had 54 players represent first grade. The season also 
provided 30 players the opportunity to play their first 1st grade game. 
 
First Grade Debutants 
30 players made their First Grade Debuts in 2018.  The most the Club has presented was in the 
2015 season with 36 players. This was the most since Randwick was admitted to First Division 
rugby in 1923 when 24 players made their First Grade debut. 
 
Tom Wong, Dan Matthews, Alex Hills, Tom Nowlan, Sam Musgrove, Ikapote Tupai, Harry Tyson, 
James Ramm, Nick Wilkinson, Andy Marks, Patrick Pelligrini, Max Page, Justin Cooper, Declan 
O’Donahue, Alexander Moon, Ryan Powter, Anthony Vasilis, Lachlan Miller, Will Harrison, Ben 
Donaldson, Kiernan Rabie, Ryan Block, Dave Puchett, Ben Hunt, Bryan Croke, Christian Yassmin, 
Shane Byrne, Nic Andrews, Patrick Rumble and Triston Reilly. 
 
Congratulations to the Award winners for 2018 
 
Best and Fairest:      Jack Johnson 
Most Appearances and Most Improved:  Lewie Taie 18 games (played every minute) 
Leading Point Scorer:     Harry Tyson with 67 points from 9 games 
Leading Try scorer:     Christian Yassmin 11 Tries 
 
A special mention must go to our players who were selected at the end of the season to play NRC. 
These include David Vea, Cameron Betham,  Ben Donaldson, Jack Hayson, Jack Johnson, Sam 
Croke, Mitch Short, Latu Latinipulu, Christian Poidevin, Kiernan Rabie, James Ramm and Will 
Harrison. 
 
Off the field there has been a great team working to get the players in a position to perform. To my 
fellow coaches in first grade, Patrick Phibbs and Richard Stanford, thanks go for your highly 
respected assistance throughout the season. 
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            First Grade 2018 Season Results – Shute Shield 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

Gordon Won 48-5 Won 38-24 

Warringah Lost 19-46 Lost 23-32 

Eastern Suburbs Won 26-19 Lost 20-41 

West Harbour Lost 12-30 

 Eastwood Lost 19-43 

 Northern Suburbs Lost 17-28 Lost 19-36 

Penrith W/Fft 28-0 W/Fft 28-0 

Manly Lost 10-23 Draw 36 all 

Parramatta Won 41-33 

 Southern Districts Lost 22-23   

Sydney University Lost 10-28 Lost 7-45 

   

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 45 61 

Goals 30 41 

Penalty Goals 12 15 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries 2  

Total Points 321 432 

   Played 18 

 Won 4 

 Lost 11 

 Drawn 1 

 Bonus Points 7 

 Win Points 33 

 Total Points 40 

 Points For 321 

 Points Against 432 
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Second Grade Report 

 

 

Coach:            Ben Rutherford 

Manager:        Bill Davies and Tom Fahy 

Captain:          Declan O’Donahue and Bryan Croke 

 

With a young and inexperienced yet energetic and exciting squad, the 2018 season offered 

endless possibilities. 

 

A tough start in round one at home quickly illustrated what was required at this level and thankfully 

the team bounced back well on the road in week two. Unfortunately this would develop into a 

pattern and become the story of our year, never really building momentum and hitting our straps. 

Injuries to key guys and the graduation of colts to first year grade players, exposed the group to a 

variety of scenarios that were unfamiliar and uncomfortable. Several tight games ended in losses, 

with our inability to do the basics well for a sustained period of time cruelling our chances of 

playing finals footy. Often the team would start incredibly well before falling asleep and allowing 

opposition sides back into games, with results against eventual minor premiers Easts and finalists 

such as Eastwood, Manly and Warringah harsh reminders of wasted opportunities. 

 

With plenty of ‘on-the-job’ learning, it was a chance to fast-track the development of the next 

generation of talent within the club. Several promising players such as Dave Puchert, Justin 

Cooper, Tom Nowlan and Patrick Pellegrini, amongst others, had the opportunity to play 1st grade 

– here’s hoping these were the start of successful, long term 1st grade careers at Randwick. Our 

Best & Fairest was a tight battle and came down to the last round where back-rower Ikapote Tupai 

just pipped lock/back-rower Ryan Powter. Both players embodied the no-frills, do your job and 

physically impose yourself mentality we drove the group to deliver each week. 

 

Highlights throughout the season included: 

 

- The win at home against Norths with defence the key - the commitment to out-work and 

physically dominate the opposition was outstanding. More importantly key members of our team 

had made the switch from Norths to Randwick under difficult circumstances and were rightly 

rewarded for taking the risk and backing themselves. 
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- The complete annihilation of Sydney University at home when every man and his dog no doubt 

expected the opposite, especially with the group down on troops. After a tough season – it was 

great to see the team back themselves and play sensational attacking rugby mixed with repeat 

defensive efforts. 

 

I’m hopeful these highlights act as catalyst for the future of the group. Driving higher standards 

plus accountability amongst each other whilst building belief through hard work in the off-season 

will ensure 2019 sees a drastic change in results and the realisation of the talent we have on 

hand. 

 

A huge thanks to Assistant Coaches Joel Rivers and Matt Buckland – your hard work and 

dedication throughout the year was very much appreciated and I enjoyed working together. 

Captain/s Declan O’Donahue and Bryan Croke worked hard to inspire teammates and wore their 

hearts on their sleeves – thanks boys. Last but not least – our every reliable managers Bill Davies 

and Tom Fahy – thanks for generously offering your time and looking after our lads. 

 

Up The Wicks! 

Ben Rutherford 
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Second Grade 2018 Season Results – Colin Caird Shield 

 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

 Gordon  Lost  15 - 39  Won 40 - 28 

 Warringah  Won 20 - 12  Lost 22 - 26 

 Eastern Suburbs  Lost  24 - 36  Lost 10 - 40 

 West Harbour  Won 48 - 29   

 Eastwood  Lost  14 - 33   

 Northern Suburbs  Won 33 - 20  Lost  7 - 53 

 Penrith  F/ft  28 -  0  F/ft 28-0 

 Manly  Lost 24 - 27  Lost 28 - 30 

 Parramatta  Won 35 -  7   

 Southern Districts  Won 23 - 12   

 Sydney University   Lost 14 - 33  Won 52 - 38 

      

   

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 57 62 

Goals 7 9 

Penalty Goals 4 5 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 369 
 

    Played 18 

  Won 7 

  Lost 9 

  Drawn 0 

  Bonus Points 12 

  Win    Points 36 

  Total  Points 48 

           66 Players participated in Second Grade 
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 Best and Fairest   Ikapote Tupai     

 Most Games    Tom Wong 14 games 

 Leading Points Scorer  Bryan Croke 72 points 

 Leading Try  Scorer  Toby Johnston 9 Tries 
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Third Grade Report 

 

Coach:                      Danny Grant 

Assistant Coaches    John Catterson and Joe Picone 

Managers:               Allen Stutchbury 

Captain:                   Patrick Hodgetts 

The season started early with pre-season training commencing in Nov 2018. We would like to thank all 

those that have assisted in the 3rd Grade Team this year, especially Owen, Anthony, Phil, Richard, Matt 

and all the other coaches, Travis and Melissa and the many other volunteers. 

The 5 weeks leading up to the finals we beat four of the five teams in the top six. Finishing 5th we played 

Easts in the Qualifying Final who were again our nemesis’s. The final score was 27-10 (five tries to two). 

We tried to implement an aggressive style of play and meet Easts head-on. with our forwards leading from 

the front, Shane Byrne, Pat Hodgetts (C) and Henry Leslie in front row, Iain McGann and Alec Corcoran 

tried hard while the back row of Dave Akkersydyk, Sam Connor (B&F), and Finn Wright covered a lot of 

ground. The backs Tony Luxford, and Morgan Steyn led the charge with Doug Brown and Josh Ellison in 

centres and the wings Sepesa Loga-Toraga and Ron Streater- Mason with Kieran Knight at fullback all 

contributing. 

Throughout the year there were many players who were involved and contributed to the success of 3rd 

Grade and we would like to thank you all for your efforts. 

Thanks to the many players who contributed to 3rd Grade throughout the year. To mention a few, Finn as 

an 18-year-old proved that age is no barrier to dominating, Sam as B&F was always gutsy, punching well 

above his weight, the tight five with scrum dominating (thanks to Coach Joe), Morgan and Pesa developed 

throughout the year, Kieran was missed through injury but showed his class when available and Hodgy led 

from the front. Tony, well played and what a great effort reaching 100 games for the Club. Best wishes in 

Canberra next year. 

Thanks to all our reserves, especially Adam Freier as it is not often that 3rd Grade players get the honour 

to play with a Wallaby. 

From the team of Danny, Joe, Allen and John we believe that all the 3rd Grade players can reach higher 

grades if they commit to hard work and have a determination to improve. 
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Third Grade 2018 Season Results – J.R.Henderson Shield 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

 Gordon  Won 47 - 19  Won 33 - 26 

 Warringah   Lost 13 - 33  Won 33 - 21 

 Eastern Suburbs  Won 35 - 25  Lost 20 - 34 

 West Harbour  Won 38 - 14   

 Eastwood  Lost 13 - 22   

 Northern Suburbs  Lost   7 - 17  Won 23 - 19 

 Penrith  F/ft  28 -  0  F/ft 28-  0 

 Manly  Lost 14 - 29  Won 32 - 30 

 Parramatta  Won 57  - 7   

 Southern Districts  Won 47-19   

 Sydney University  Lost 19 - 43  Won 24 - 10 

     

Qualifying Semi Final Eastern Suburbs Lost 10-27 

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 64 53 

Goals 50 32 

Penalty Goals 10 5 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries 1  

Total Points 450 344 

   Played 18 

 Won 10 

 Lost 6 

 Drawn 0 

 Bonus Points 10 

 Win Points 48 

 Total Points 58 

     72 Players participated in Third Grade   
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 Best and Fairest   Sam Connor  

 Most Games    Shane Byrne and Tony Luxford 14 games 

 Leading Points Scorer  Morgan Steyn 91 points 

 Leading Try     Scorer  Sepesa Loga-Tarogi 7 tries 
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Fourth Grade Report 

 

Coach:                                     James Lancaster 

Assistant Coaches:                 Marty Kiernan and Joe Picone 

Managers:                                Ian Holder 

Captain:                                   Sonny Satuala 

After an 8 game winning streak this year, even beating the top 3 including Uni, Easts and 
Warringah we were unlucky to go down to Norths in Rd 18 (after beating them previously in the 
season) to not make finals. The 4th grade competition was sensational this year and only 12 
points separated 1 from 6. As at Round 17 we were on the same win/loss ratio as 3,4 and 5th 
positions however those teams had more bonus points and that ultimately cost us the finals berth. 

The season started very slowly and we didn't get our first win till round 4,  then round 6 we beat 
Norths and started to gain confidence, with the week off in round 7 against Penrith we only 
managed to put 12 on a struggling 4th grade Manly side, where other top 6 teams had bonus point 
wins. In short between round 5 and round 17 we had only lost 2 games. Up until that last round if 
you flipped the second half of the season around Randwick would have been in 1st place of the 
4th grade comp. That's how unforgiving footy is, even at this level. 

Anyone that knows any of my boys in 4s this year will tell you the same thing. We had a bloody 
good time, that back half of the season especially. Something that certainly we will build on for 
next year and really look to fulfil the potential of this extremely talented close knit group of players. 

I felt gutted for them, the Club and our supporters after the Norths game, still trying to get over it 
now as I write this report. But you'll remember this fellas, and mark my word, you'll put it right next 
year! 

Special thanks goes to Marty my assistant coach, Kai the ever smiling ball boy, Paul and Di for 
patching the boys up whenever they needed it, to all the physio staff  and also to Jeff Sayle for his 
continuing support throughout the season. Also special mention to all my colt sons who came and 
dipped their toe in the murky waters of grade this year. You blokes were awesome and proved you 
are more than ready for the main stage! 

Sonny Satuala, Clubman of the year. This bloke was a deadset legend, from playing 1st grade 
footy he came down to 4ths after an injury and decided to buy in and really get behind the program 
and Sonny I gotta tell you, we very nearly did it my friend. UTW! 

James Lancaster 
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Fourth Grade 2018 Season Results – J.R.Henderson Cup 

Opponent Round 1 Round 2 

 Gordon  Lost  17 - 26  Won 26 - 19 

 Warringah  Lost  21 - 23  Won 17 - 14 

 Eastern Suburbs  Lost  12 - 17  Won 19 - 12 

 West Harbour  Won 29 - 22   

 Eastwood  Lost 19 - 45   

 Northern Suburbs  Won 24 - 19  Lost  7 - 15 

 Penrith  F/ft  20  -  0  F/ft 20 -  0 

 Manly  Won 12  - 0  Won 14 - 10 

 Parramatta  Lost 19 - 38   

 Southern Districts  Won 22 - 12   

 Sydney University  Lost 10 - 13  Won 14 -10 

   

   Season Scoring  

  For Against 

Tries 40 39 

Goals 29 25 

Penalty Goals 4 7 

Field Goals   

Penalty Tries   

Total Points 270 266 

  

 
 

Played 18 

 Won 9 

 Lost 7 

 Drawn 0 

 Bonus Points 8 

 Win Points 44 

 Total Points 52 

   

   89 Players participated in Fourth Grade   
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 Best and Fairest   Dion Narayan      

 Most Games    Sosefo Smith  14 games 

 Leading Points Scorer  Dion Narayan 33 points 

 Leading Try Scorer   Kieran Bonin 3 Tries 
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Director of Colts Report 2018 

The 2018 season for Randwick’s Colts Program was successful and satisfying. The group qualified all 

teams for finals, won the Colts Club Championship, two premierships and took a significant step towards 

ensuring Randwick Rugby continues to have a promising future. 

The group set out at the beginning of the season with a primary goal of winning the Club Championship, a 

competition Sydney University had dominated for the past two and half decades (losing only once). This 

goal was prioritized as it was an objective the group could achieve as a whole, with no division between 

teams and with accountability across the group. 

Not only did our Colts win, they did it comfortably. A winning margin of 147 points equates to nearly three 

full rounds of bonus point wins, so the result was emphatic and thoroughly deserved. 

Premiership-wise, Colts 1 and Colts 2 collected silverware in 2018, and in impressive fashion. Both 

undefeated through 21 games, they finished their season off against Gordon on grand final day which 

kicked off lengthy and well deserved celebrations. Special mention must go to the Colts 3 players who 

reserved for Colts 2 throughout finals, genuine clubmen who volunteered their time to support their fellow 

mates on the path to a premiership. 

To the players progressing to Grade in 2019, you have the potential to maintain the standards you set in 

Colts and continue to improve yourselves and the Club. Thank you for the service to the Club’s Colts 

Program; the Club could not be prouder of what you achieved this year.  

At a club like Randwick, every player’s duty is to leave his jersey in a better state than that which he 

acquired. So to those returning, the exciting challenge will be to better what was achieved in 2018, as 

there’s nothing stopping you and the new members of our Club! 

Congratulations and thanks go to our coaching staff who work tirelessly to make this program better every 

year. Hadley Jackson, Peter Dumbleton, Tim Clifford, Kimon Tellidis, Nick Kellaway, Jack Roach, Michael 

Clarke and Mitch Aro all did a tremendous job this year and we look forward to their continued involvement 

in the Club for what will hopefully be years to come.  

To our manager extraordinaire, Graham Neville, thank you! Graham was first to arrive each week to 

organise and take good care of our Colts 3 side (which is no mean feat considering some of the kick off 

times they were dealt this year!). Graham would then mentor and assist Mitch Aro during Colts 2 

management duties, and then assume the reigns again as he kept the Colts 1 players and staff in check. 

Whilst much of your work is done out of sight, it certainly did not go unnoticed and was critical to the Club’s 

success. 

Further, our medical and performance staff of Jack Philp, Mike Broadbent, Di Long, Louisa McGinness and 

Dr Paul Raftos continue to keep our colts as fit and healthy as possible. The Club and our players could not 

operate successfully without your fine work. 

Finally, to the Board and our Club staff Travis Partridge and Melissa Stone, thank you for the continuing 

effort and support. The Colts Program is improving each year and your efforts are a critical element in that 

improvement.  

Nick Hensley 
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First Grade Colts Report 

 

Coach: Hadley Jackson 

Manager: Graham Neville 

Captain: Christian Poidevin 

What a year was had with a fantastic group of players, support staff, friends and family, all of whom are 

now lifelong friends! To go undefeated in a season is something truly special, and the manner in which it 

was done was even more pleasing than the 21-0 result. 

 

This group of young men had talent, and lots of it, but what unlocked that talent was a work ethic and 

camaraderie that ensured we played our best when the pressure was on. Our job as coaches was then to 

play to the group's strengths, keep them confident and fresh and analyse what we needed to do to beat the 

Opposition on a weekly basis. I’m a firm believer that there is no luck involved at the business end of the 

year. Each unnoticed effort from the players, coaches and staff all came together to culminate when the 

pressure was at its greatest. 

 

The most pleasing thing of the year when we look back is the fact that the boys didn’t miss a beat all year. 

There was no game that we didn’t play well or turn up. We were behind on the scoreboard only twice 

throughout the year. For a group of teenagers, this level of focus shows what they are about. 

 

To have two home ground semi-finals in front of a great home crowd, and to put on a monumental 

performance against our biggest rivals Souths, in the Preliminary final running out 64-14 was something 

special and a reward for the club and the boys. I hope Coogee Oval becomes a permanent finals fixture 

because it sure gives us a lift and makes us even harder to beat. I believe that what the boys achieved this 

year will be looked back on in time and appreciated for what it was! They are a great young group of men, 

who I firmly believe can bring a lot of success to this great Club in the years to come! 

 

We would like to thank Travis and Mel for all of their hard work, which all came together brilliantly over the 

finals series and Grand Final. Thanks also go to Bob Dwyer and the Board for their support over the year, 

and all of the friends and families who supported us and were there to bring the trophy home with us on 

Grand Final night! 

 

We had a ball and can’t wait to do it all over again! 

Hadley, Pete, Nick, Philpy and Graham 
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First Grade Colts 2018 Season Results  - Undefeated Premiers 

 

 

  Opponent   Round 1 Round 2 

  Gordon  Won 31 - 29  Won 58 - 12 

  Warringah  Won 87 - 10  Won 82 -  7 

  Eastern Suburbs  Won 26  -  7  Won 62 - 28 

  West Harbour  Won 109 - 0   

  Eastwood  Won 35 - 15   

  Northern Suburbs  Won 39  -  7  Won 60 - 14 

  Penrith  F/ft  28  -  0  F/ft 28 -  0 

  Manly  Won 26  - 3  Won 66 -  8 

  Parramatta  Won 58 - 10   

  Southern Districts  Won 43 - 26   

  Sydney University  Won 54 -   0  Won 47 - 22 
 

 
 

Qualifying Semi 
Final  Manly Won 28-21 

 Semi Final 
Southern 
Districts Won 64-14 

 Grand Final Gordon Won 36-20 

 
 

 

 
 
 

                                       Season Scoring 

 
 

For Against 

 Tries 147 29 

 Goals 102 19 

 Penalty/Field Goals 0 0 

 Penalty Tries 
  

 

Total Points 939 198 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 Played 18 
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Won 16 

  Lost 0 

  Drawn 0 

  Bonus Points 18 
  Win Points 72 

  Total Points 90 

  

    40 Players appeared in Colts First Grade 
  

Most Appearances  Ben Donaldson and Christian Poidevin  16 each 

Leading Try Scorer  Jackson Mohi 23 Tries 

Leading Points Scorer Jackson Mohi 117 points 

Best and Fairest  Christian Poidevin 

 

 

 

 

 

Second Grade Colts Report 
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Coach:    Tim Clifford 

Assistant Coaches: Kimon Tellidis and Nick Kellaway 

Manager:    

Captain:   Matt Orpen 

Season 2018 for 2nds Colts was not only a successful year in itself but it was an exciting glimpse 

into the future for Randwick Rugby. With the 2017 season finishing short of expectations, the 

playing group had added motivation to make amends in 2018. The depth of the Colts program, 

which is a credit to the hard work of Travis Partridge and Nick Hensley, meant the 2nds Colts were 

always going to be very competitive this year. One of the key elements to the team’s success was 

the return of a number of second-year players, who were instrumental in creating the team’s 

culture and standards. The team was led by Matt Orpen who set the benchmark for attitude and 

effort all year. Matt’s on-field performances did most of the talking for him, which resulted in Matt 

being named Best & Fairest for the season and Man of the Match in the Grand Final. Other 

players who deserve special mention are Zac Carr, Jaya Yoannidis, Lachie Day, Latham James 

and Callum Quinn who were back for their 2nd year in Colts. This group of players was able to 

build on their experiences from 2017 and help create the competitive and confident environment 

for those new to the group. Hopefully one of the lasting memories from the season will be the style 

of rugby that was played. From the start of the year, the team backed themselves to score from 

anywhere on the field and execute plays at crucial moments of the game. The team had a clear 

focus on improving each week and it was this factor and mindset that maintained their high 

standards throughout the year. We had a big focus at training on developing the skills of all 

players, from 1 through to 15, which reflected on game day with 17 bonus point wins from 18 

games in the regular season and 167 points scored in the 3 finals games. Hopefully all players will 

be back next year whether it be in grade or colts, as the talent coming through the Club means 

Randwick has a very bright future to come. 

I’d just like to thank and congratulate Nick Hensley, Hadley Jackson and Peter Dumbleton. The 1st 

Colts were unstoppable this season and that was largely due to the effort put in from day 1. The 

‘club first’ approach meant that not just the team but the entire colts group benefited from the 

outstanding leadership and support. It was awesome to be able to train with and against you all 

season, which I strongly believe was a significant factor in the success of both teams. Finally, my 

biggest thank you goes out to the other 2nds coaches - Kimon Tellidis and Nick Kellaway. Both of 

you were instrumental in the achievements of the team and more importantly the development of 

the players. The connection you had with the team meant that on top of the success we had with 

our on field performances, all those involved in the team had such a fun and enjoyable season. 

Tim Clifford 
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Second Grade 2018 Season Results - Undefeated Premiers 

 

Opposition Round 1 Round 2 

 Gordon  Won 28 - 10  Won  31 - 14 

 Warringah  Won 63  -  5  Won 43 -  7 

 Eastern Suburbs  Won 49 - 14  Won 31 - 15 

 West Harbour  Won 52  - 0   

 Eastwood  Won 52  - 5   

 Northern Suburbs  Won 38  - 7  Won 64 -  3 

 Penrith  F/ft   20 -  0  F/ft   20  0 

 Manly  Won 26 -  3  Won 72 --0 

 Parramatta  Won 33 -  5   

 Southern Districts  Won 50 -  7   

 Sydney University  Won 22 - 14  Won 38 -  8 

      Qualifying Semi 
Final 

 Northern 
Suburbs  Won 59 - 10 

   Semi Final 
 Eastern 
Suburbs  Won 56 - 12 

  Grand Final  Gordon  Won 50 - 24 

   Season Scoring 

  For Against 

  Tries 117 16 

  Goals 72 11 

  Penalty Goals 1 5 

  Field Goals 0 0 

  Penalty Tries     

  Total Points 732 117 

   

     Played 18 
   Won 16 
   Lost 0 
   Drawn 0 
  Forfeit 2 
   Bonus Points 17 
   Win Points 72 
   Total Points 89 
   Points For 732 
   Points Against 117 
 

 

 These statistics do not include the Finals series 
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54 Players participated in Second Grade Colts 

Best & Fairest   Matt Orpen 

Most Games   Matt Orpen   14 games 

Leading Points Scorer Zac Carr   83 points 

Leading Try Scorer  Blaise Barnes, Zac Carr,  8 each 

Will Douglass, Ben Duckworth, Jaya Yoannidis 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Third Grade Colts Report 
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Coaches: Jack Roach, Michael Clarke and Mitch Aro 

Manager: Graham Neville 

Captain: Posesione Lynch 

Many returning players and lots of new players wanting to see what Randwick Rugby was all 

about turned up for the 2018 Season. Coached by one premiership-winning coach, a washed up 

suburban rugby player and a new international recruit, Thirds Colts was always going to be an 

interesting year. With over 30 different players taking the field for this team, combinations were 

always going to be difficult to make. Much like last year’s team there was always the worry of 

losing players due to limited game time early in the season. However, to make finals in all 3 teams 

and come away with the Colts Club Championship made the coaches immensely proud. 

It was always going to be a tough ask going back to back as a Colts 3s side. There were 

significant personnel changes with many of last year’s team moving up in Colts or into Grade. This 

opened up spots for players to take and cement as their own. A couple of boys really took their 

opportunities this year in their last year of Colts, special mentions must go to Guy Beynon and 

Sam Canterella for their efforts and also to Posesione Lynch who took up the Captaincy and lead 

with his heart on his sleeve. I could name the whole squad here as everyone played their part. 

Early in the season we had some very tough games, drawing with our Eastern Suburbs rivals and 

narrowly going down to Eastwood. The biggest question for the coaching staff was how we would 

get this large squad to gel over the rest of the season. We proceeded to have some big wins and 

some very narrow losses and a couple of draws which no one likes! At no point was there any 

doubt that this team could beat anyone if we turned up on the day. 

We finished the regular season in 5th spot and had Sydney University in the knock-out quarter 

final. Having drawn and had a narrow loss with University earlier in the year it was a huge game 

for the boys. To be down 21-8 at half time and to be leading 25-24 with 90 seconds to go says a 

huge amount about how far the boys had come this year. Everyone that saw that game was lucky 

enough to witness what Randwick Rugby is really about. Every player in the squad played their 

own part, and although it was immensely disappointing to lose to a penalty on the buzzer there 

was nothing left on the field. The Club and supporters could not be more proud of the efforts of 

everyone during that game. 

Special thanks must go to Mike and the physio team, Jack Philp S & C extraordinaire, the other 

coaches in the Colts program, specifically Co-ordinator Nick Hensley, Graham Neville the best 

manager going around in the Shute Shield and my fellow coaches, Michael Clarke and Mitch Aro. 

Thanks also go to the friends and family who supported the boys throughout the year. 

See you all again next year! 

Jack Roach 
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Third Grade 2018 Season Results 

 

Opposition Round 1 Round 2 
  Gordon  Won  31 - 10  Lost 12 - 15 
  Warringah  Won  43  - 5  Lost 10 - 22 
  Eastern Suburbs  Draw 12 -12  Won 38 - 26 
  West Harbour  F'ft    20 - 0   
  Eastwood  Lost  20 - 24   
  Northern Suburbs  Lost  19 - 29  Won 31 -  0 
  Penrith  F/ft   20 -  0  F/ft  20 -  0 
  Manly  Won 36  - 5  Won 82 - 0 
  Parramatta  Won 12 - 10   
  Southern Districts  Won 35 -  7   
  Sydney University  Draw 19 -19  Lost 0  -  8 
 

       Qualifying Semi 
Final  Sydney University  Lost 25 - 27 

 

    Season Scoring 
   For Against 
   Tries 70 29 
   Goals 40 13 
   Penalty Goals 0 0 
   Field Goals 0 0 
   Penalty Tries     
   Total Points 430 184 
 

      Played 18 
    Won 8 
    Lost 5 
    Drawn 2 
   Forfeit 3 
    Bonus Points 14 
    Win Points 48 
    Total Points 62 
    Points For 430 
    Points Against 184 
  These results do not include the Finals series 

  

57 Players participated in Third Grade Colts 

Best and Fairest  Guy Beynon   

Most Games                         Guy Beynon and Kueva Lynch     15   each  

Leading Points Scorer           Lachlan Day     60 Points 

Leading Try Scorer              Lachlan Day    6   Tries 
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Club Captains’ Report 

Patrick Hodgetts and Declan O’Donahue 

 

After 18 rounds of footy and another year gone, there was a range of emotion at the season’s end. 

While the on-field results didn’t always come, there has still been plenty to crow about, with a 

thriving off-field culture, strong Colts group and some good results in Grade throughout the year. 

It was a mixed year in 1st Grade and although they didn’t get the results they were looking for at 

the pointy end, it was not through lack of effort or passion. The grit and heart showed by the side 

in a number of close games gave the Coogee fans something to hold on to and there is no doubt 

the results will come. Well done to the boys and coaches, and not least Jack Johnson for taking 

home Best and Fairest, and Lewis Taie for playing every minute of every game including trials – a 

huge effort. 

Of course, huge congratulations to Nick Hensley and the Colts with their success in winning both 

1st and 2nd Colts premierships with both sides going undefeated. A true feat!  On top of this was 

the Colts Club Championship being locked away at Coogee for another year with a round to spare, 

which is something that is truly impressive. The boys achieved great success together and did the 

Club proud.  

The lower grades also had mixed results, with third grade being the only side to scrape through to 

finals although not without some crackers throughout the season. The Club has an abundance of 

talent that must continue to be nurtured and developed ranging from Colts through to stalwart 1st 

Grade players. As we move into the 2019 season it is important for the rugby program to develop 

both players and people on and off the field and the results will come, and the Club continue to 

rise. 

Congratulations to several members of the Randwick family that were presented with the 

opportunity to represent their Club at higher levels, including Sam Croke (Aus 7s), Ed Kennedy 

(Scarletts), David Horwitz (Rebels/Connacht), Andrew Deegan (Connacht/Western Force), Jock 

Armstrong (Rebels), Mitch Short (Western Force/Waratahs), Andrew Kellaway 

(Waratahs/Northampton), Ben O’Donnell (Aus 7s), Henry Hutchison (Rebels/Aus 7s), Ned 

Hanigan (Wallabies), James Ramm (Aus 20s), Lochie Miller (Aus 7s), Dylan Pietsch (Aus 7s), 

Triston Reilly (Aus 7s), Simon Kennewell (Aus 7s),  Harrison Goddard (Rebels), Lukhan Tui 

(Reds/Wallabies), and Esei Hanga’ana (Rebels). These players’ successes are a reflection of the 

hard work and commitment instilled in them through their time with the Wicks – if only they could 

play more Club footy! 

A special mention to Dave Horwitz in risking his contract with Connacht to share his knowledge 

and play footy with his mates on his 10 week stint back in Sydney. A true Clubman and someone 

that the Club dearly values (along with Field to Fork on Saturdays). 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

 

58 
 

Of course, a huge round of thanks goes to our sponsors, supporters, volunteers, coaches and 

managers who give up their time to keep the Club ticking over. Our coaches, managers and 

volunteers only want the best for the Club and our current playing group, both on and of the field, 

and the boys know this. Club Rugby is so heavily reliant on volunteers and their love for the game, 

and it is the players and Randwick members that benefit. The support of our Wicks volunteers is 

something unparalleled and should be commended at every opportunity.  Thank you! 

Moving forward, there is a tremendous group of Colts that have created something special under 

Nick Hensley’s guidance during 2018. The success of this group stems from the dual management 

approach between coaches and players, and the environment created was something special. It 

bodes well for the success of Grade in coming seasons having this group coming through. For 

Grade, the players remain performance focused and want to make sure that silverware is brought 

back to its rightful home in Brook Street, Coogee. 

Off the field there has been a tight buy-in by the boys led by a social group that has really stepped 

up. It’s great to have a home again in the Coogee Beach Club where the players, staff, supporters, 

family and friends are welcome to enjoy a beer or two and relax. We have a Clubhouse again, and 

only good things can come of it.  

We will continue to rally and stay tight as we always do, grow as a group and pump up for 2019! 

Up The Wicks! 
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Randwick and South East Magic Womens and Girls 
 

What a wonderful year 2018 was for the Randwick and South East Magic Womens and Girls 
rugby season. We had a state record close to 150 registered women and girls in 2018 and the 
results from this was evident. 
 
Our youth girls were by far and away the stand out club in Sydney rugby 7s again this year, 
winning the SJRU Sizzling U7s competition in the U12s and U14s divisions. Coming 2nd in the 
U16s and 3rd in the U10s and U18s divisions. Next year South East Magic are already planning 
on entering teams in the Randwick minis for the first time, so looks like we will be going from 
strength to strength again in 2019. 
 
Randwick Magic Open Womens this season not just cemented themselves as the best club team 
in the State, even the Country. The women’s program entered 4 competitions this year, winning 3, 
narrowly missing out on all 4 trophies by 2 points. The Randwick Womens team won the Sydney 
Shute Shield Womens Competition, the Lake Macquarie 7s and also the Inaugural Western 
Sydney 7s tournament beating the national side of PNG in the final. Six of our Randwick Magic 
players recently made the Australian Womens team that won gold at the Oceania 7s just last 
month bringing our number of girls that played for Randwick and Australia this year to seven 
players. That with our 12 players that played at the National Uni 7s series level, we are clearly the 
National leaders when producing the next crop of National players. 
 
Our Junior Randwick Magic team after coming a close 3rd in the Hong Kong Junior 7s rectified 
their loss to QLDs State Champions The Renegades, beating them in the final of the Sydney City 
7s to win the SC7s in the Under 16s for the second year in a row. We also walked away with the 
NSW State Cup U15 title for the second year in a row, the first time any team had done this in the 
history of the NSW 7s State Cup. To top off this great season our U15 Randwick Girls won the first 
ever girls U15s 15-a-side NSW State Cup in a unified team with Blacktown Scorpions, creating a 
new pathway for next season's inaugural 15 a side Junior competition which we will be having a 
team in. These great results were the catalyst for six of our Randwick Magic Juniors being chosen 
to attend the Australian Youth Camps this year with our own Tia Hinds touring with the Australian 
Youth Team in December for the World Schools Championships in New Zealand. 
 
With so much success this year we have already committed to many National competitions later in 
2019, but firstly our womens team will be touring Europe to compete in the Amsterdam 7s in June 
in Holland and our Juniors will be playing in the Tournie De Capitales 7s in Paris, France in 
September. Let’s hope we can add to our already bulging trophy cabinet. 
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Reports from Randwick Junior Village Clubs 
 

Clovelly JRFC Report 

 

As 2018 draws to a close, yet another season of Eagles’ history is slotted into the history books. 

Once again, over twenty teams crowded onto the picturesque but windswept Burrows Park every Monday 

and Wednesday afternoon for some fun, some time with new and old friends and, hopefully, some skills 

development from our dedicated group of Coaches. 

There was a healthy mix of results across the competitive older age groups (10s to 12s) with an aggregate 

win to loss ratio just better than par. More pleasingly was that we had no teams in the bottom four of any of 

these Junior age groups. This contrasts to the past couple of seasons where we’ve had a couple of teams 

enduring a long season with a bit too much time spent standing under their own goalposts. My personal 

view is that it is not healthy to have any particular Club or team completely dominating and that kids learn 

more when they’re losing (almost) as many as they win so, I think, we’ve got the balance about right. 

A particular mention to our U12 teams who, after a tough season last year, trialled a new approach with a 

single large training group having a team in both the Sunday and Friday comps. The Friday team was more 

than competitive and the Sunday team took home the winner’s trophy, which was a great reward for their 

long term, and long-suffering, Coaches, Angus Hayes and Bruce Jones (or Brangus). All benefited from the 

disciplined training approach headed up by Andrew Tweed and the approach made for a harmonious and 

enjoyable end of season tour to New Zealand as the culmination of their Eagles journey. Many thanks to all 

the departing Coaches, Managers and helpers who have been involved with this age group through, for 

many, their seven year tenure at the Club. 

Our Minis in the non-competitive age groups continued to enjoy the mayhem that is a Saturday morning at 

Nagle Park where the focus is, rightfully, as much on the post-game red snakes and sausage sandwiches 

as it is on the results. Our devoted Coaches make sure the kids are incrementally developing their 

knowledge of the game, even if the kids don’t realise it, and the dedicated Managers do the hard job of 

herding the cats making for an enjoyable morning for all. 

Congratulations also to those players in our older age groups who enjoyed representative honours for 

Randwick this year, where the Club is well represented, and thanks to those who, usually in addition to their 

Club duties, put their hand up to help as well. 

To our major sponsor, Will Foster of Foster Finance, along with Shane Vincent of Belle Property Randwick 

and the Clovelly Hotel, we cannot express our gratitude enough. In a time where we’re all getting busier, to 

have to find the time to raise the funds you provide, in addition to the day to day running of the Club, would 

make it almost prohibitive to exist as a volunteer led organisation. I implore our parents in the Club to 

support these businesses as much as you can. 
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Many thanks also to the Eagles Committee members for all the anonymous work that allows the Club to 

function and to the Committees of both Randwick Juniors and the Sydney Junior Rugby Union, who, many 

may not realise, are also volunteer run organisations. 

I reserve the biggest thanks for the, almost fifty, Coaches and Managers across the Club. You not only give 

up countless hours at the expense of work or personal and family time but are the face of the Club and the 

game to the children and are, in a large part, the determining factor as to whether they want to come back 

next year and play. As I have said before, this should be the only measure by which we judge the success 

of the Club so many thanks for carrying this weight and I hope you have the enjoyment and satisfaction that 

should go with the role. 

The Committee hopes you have enjoyed your season at the Eagles. We wish you a safe ‘off-season’ 

enjoying the beaches and other activities we are privileged to be surrounded by, and look forward to seeing 

you all next year. 

Tony Sheppard 

President – Clovelly Junior Rugby Football Club 
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Coogee Junior Rugby Report 

 

 
The Coogee Seahorses newsletters from 1976 and 1977 (The Black and White Rag) show that while some 

of the finer details may be different, like the cost of a seafood lunch, the 60th year of the Coogee Seahorses 

has been no different to the 59 that have come before it. Every year involves a group of volunteers, parents 

and children working together to put rugby teams on the field every week. One might ask how on earth they 

did it in 1976 without mobile phones and the internet but at least back then they didn’t have the challenge of 

dragging kids away from such devices. 

Some might think we are crazy however an objective of the current committee is to increase our player 

numbers, especially in the younger age groups, so it was pleasing to see large numbers of new faces after 

a big off-season recruitment effort last summer. 17 teams were fielded in 2018, which is three more teams 

than in 2017. We had around 189 registered players up from 170 in 2017 and I am pleased to say a large 

proportion of the increase was in the minis (U6-U9). 

As a Club we look to be competitive, however the focus is to teach our children to play fairly and above all - 
enjoy themselves! Parent sideline behaviour is an important part of junior sport, and I am pleased to say 
that as a club we have a good reputation in this area and had no reported issues. Well done everyone and 
lets never forget it is about the kids, not us. 

In 2018 we continued to work on the standard of coaching in the Club. The club supports all coaches and 

potential coaches in obtaining formal coaching training. Nearly all our coaches attended the Coaching Kids 

Rugby Course put on by NSW Rugby specially for Seahorse coaches. Apart from an injury sustained by an 

U9 coach (age catching up!) this was a great afternoon. Many of our coaches are now looking to go onto 

the next level and complete Foundation Courses. 

We also had several guest coaches during this season giving valuable support to our regular coaches. We 

were lucky to have past and present senior Randwick coaches, as well as visits from Waratah Paddy Ryan. 

The kids love these “celebrity” visits as do the coaches (it gives them a break!). 

We had great support from sponsors in 2018 allowing us to keep registration costs down and provide our 

kids with the resources needed to run a club like ours. A big thanks to our major sponsor Mint 360 Property 

for their on-going strong support. Other sponsors included: Sensen Networks, Fi-ta, Courtyard Café, 

Coogee Pavilion, Currenti Constructions, Suite Control, and The Wright Physio. Thank you all very much 

for your support, we would not have a club without you. 

The Club continued to be well represented at Randwick home games with big numbers of Seahorse jerseys 

always on display. This connection with the senior club is very important and is something we will continue 

to work on going forward. It’s always good to see our kids out there playing on the ground between 

matches and at half time. 
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We marked the 60th Anniversary of the Club with a party at the Crowne Plaza Coogee. It was a fantastic 

night out with 150 people in attendance from across many eras of the Club. Thank you very much to 

Jacquie Folsom who organised the party and to Trevor Folsom and Investible for sponsoring the band, Jelly 

Bean Jam. Everyone danced the night away loving the old favourites from our youth. 

The season is nearly over for most of us however 55 of our U10 and U11 players will not play their last 

game of the year until September 17 when they take on the South Brisbane Magpies on their home ground. 

The Brisbane Tour is a 45-year old tradition shared by the Coogee Seahorses and Brisbane Magpies. Andy 

Pryer, our tour co-ordinator, and his team have been working hard to organise the 110-strong touring party 

and we thank all who have helped with the fundraising efforts. No doubt this year’s tour will again be a 

wonderful experience for our kids. 

This season the Club was shocked by the leukemia diagnosis of one of our U12 players, Hugo Kulscar. In 

support of Hugo, the U12 Coach Cameron Habler and Manger Jo Habler organised a fundraising event for 

Hugo. This turned out to be great event demonstrating the strength of our Club and community. To date the 

initiative has raised over $60,000, a fantastic effort. Our thoughts and prayers remain with Hugo and his 

family.  

A Club like ours cannot run without the help of volunteers. We are fortunate to have an excellent group of 

coaches and managers across all age groups helping the kids every week. Thanks also to those parents 

who helped with canteens, BBQs and other jobs throughout the season. 

Some special thanks need to go to our Committee for all their efforts in running the Club. Everyone is busy 

with work and family life and it is a big commitment to help run a junior sporting club so thank you all very 

much. We look forward to another great year in 2019! 

Go The Seahorses!! 

Arthur Spellson 

President – Coogee Junior Rugby Club 
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Maroubra Juniors Report 

 

The Maroubra Missiles Junior Rugby Union Club (“The Missiles”) enjoyed a great 2018 season, fielding 

eight teams across the U6, U7, U8, U9 & U10s age groups.  

With last year’s committee’s kids all moving up to the Myrtle Green Warriors, it has been a baptism of fire 

for the new committee in 2018!  Things got off to a rocky start with our two largest long-term sponsors 

deciding they would not be able to support The Missiles in 2018.  Luckily, we have been able to forge new 

partnerships with The Bay Hotel and Diner, Eitan Rubinstein from McGrath Real Estate, The Bay 

Bakehouse and Champ mouthguards.  This, along with the continued support from Nicholson & Saville 

Food Purveyor and a grant from NSW government has allowed us to continue to offer the kids great value 

for money.  We have also been able to continue subsidising registration fees for kids who would otherwise 

not be able to play our great game. 

Although we lost our whole U11s team from last year, our overall player numbers were slightly up on 2017.  

It has been particularly pleasing to see strong numbers in U6s & U7s which augurs well for the next few 

years.  Our club motto is “Friendship and Fun” and our objective is to foster an active rugby community and 

promote the game in a well-structured, inclusive and fun environment (i.e. winning isn’t everything!).  We 

are starting to see this coming through in kids’ attitude and it is great to see the lasting friendships being 

developed.  The kids really enjoyed having both Bernard Foley and Kurtley Beale come down to help with 

training. 

Off the field, the Club has continued to thrive.  The annual trivia night was stepped up to the next level this 

year and is fast becoming one of the Eastern Suburb’s social events of the year (ok, maybe that is a bit of a 

stretch but it was a bloody good night)!  It was also very useful having a hotel as our main sponsor with the 

parents often having a Saturday afternoon “debrief” from the morning’s games.   The season officially 

ended late September with a great afternoon down at Maroubra Beach for our presentation day. 

Last, but not least, a big thank you goes to all the volunteers in the club.   We were very lucky this year to 

have a lot of new people with a broad range of skills join the committee.  For a bunch of first-timers, I was 

amazed at how smooth everything went this year and I really do appreciate everyone’s effort.  Also, thanks 

to all the coaches and managers who have put in countless hours over the season and to all the parents 

and siblings who assisted with the BBQ duties. 

One more thing, we built a new website this year.  Check it out…. http://maroubramissiles.com.au/ 

Here’s to an even bigger and better 2019 season at The Missiles! 

Yours in rugby 

Jamie Menere (President) 

http://maroubramissiles.com.au/
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South Coogee Junior RUFC “Red Devils” Report 

 

 

In 2018, the South Coogee “Red Devils” fielded 6 teams across the U8, U9, U10, U11 and U12 

age groups. The U10s experienced a 110% increase in player registrations from 2017 and ran two 

teams in 2018. The U8 and U9 Mini teams enjoyed the gala day like atmosphere at Nagle Park 

each Saturday – a set up led by David Caples that continues to impress all kids and parents who 

participate in Minis Rugby. And the junior teams from U10-U12 all participated in the finals with the 

U11 and U12 teams finishing very gallant runners up to Rockdale in two very skillful and 

entertaining grand finals at Latham Park. 

Our small but robust club continues to receive extremely valuable support from fantastic sponsors 

who in 2018 included Marnie Seinor McGrath Real Estate, Freeda Jreige Property Management, 

Bendigo Community Bank – Clovelly, Coogee Legion Club and Two Fives Café – Rosebery. 

In 2019, South Coogee JRUC will celebrate its 60th year. And in recognition of this milestone the 

Club has unveiled a new modern logo which incorporates designs of the past respectful of the 

Club’s rich history. 

Special thanks must go to the volunteer coaches and managers that support the teams each week 

and ensure the players enjoy every minute of their involvement and also to the hard-working 

committee comprising Heather Marshall, Justine McCarthy, Andrew Cleverley and Raffy Cleverley. 

And finally, thanks goes to all the players and parents who are central to the mighty “Red Devils” 

junior rugby club. We look forward to an even more enjoyable and successful 2019! 

Ben Whitaker – President, South Coogee JRUC 
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Randwick Myrtle Green Warriors 

 

Randwick Warriors Club is the only club in the Randwick District offering teenage club rugby, which is only 

played on Sundays in Sydney. The Sunday competition is graded: for example, there are six grades in the U13s 

I am glad to say that the Club is another example of a thriving local rugby community working together for the 

good of the game. The Club formed in 2014 and was really struggling for traction and numbers at the beginning 

of 2016. However, the good news is that the Club doubled its numbers in 2017 and 2018 and is going from 

strength to strength with about 180 players registered this year. 

A lot of hard work goes into the U12/13 transition from the four Village Clubs (Clovelly, Coogee, Maroubra and 

South Coogee) into the Warriors. Strong numbers in the U13s will carry on in later years and so, a successful 

transition is the lifeblood of the Club. 

As it turned out, this year’s transition was the best ever with two full U13 teams (46 players) and a very healthy 

waiting list. The Greens played in the A Division and showed great courage, skill and character in competing 

against the big boys of Sydney’s West each week and just missed out on the Semis. The Whites had a tough 

start to the year but were eventually graded in E Division and finished off the season playing some scintillating 

Randwick running rugby; a joy to watch. 

U14s fielded two teams, one A Division and one B Division. They didn’t make the pointy end of the season but, 

with some outstanding talent, the Age Group came fourth in the State Championships and produced 4 

representatives into the Sydney squad. 

The U15 Whites (D Div) and Greens (A Div) had successful seasons both making the play offs. Probably just as 

pleasing were the numbers signing up with two full teams in the Age Group. Special mention to the Whites who 

introduced 7 new local players to the Club. 

As founding President, Jamie Johnson, once said: “If you leave the light on, they will come”. And that’s exactly 

what happened in the U16s as the Age Group was flooded with over 30 players looking for a game. The team 

competed well in B Division. 

There was no Opens (U17/18) team this year, which is consistent with the trend across Sydney. The reality is 

that there were only 6 teams in the Opens across Sydney, which no doubt is being looked at by the people that 

make the big decisions in the Code. Fortunately, we will have two U16s teams in 2019, with about 20 of those 

boys from non-rugby schools. So the Club will definitely have an Opens team in 2020 and hopefully next year as 

well. 

This year there was a better connection between our Club and the Senior Club with plenty of Colts and Grade 

players attending our Super Sunday at Nagle Park in August and passing on their “Pathway” stories to the 

Warriors. We will be looking for an even stronger connection with the Senior Club next year. 

I’d like to thank our sponsors: Mellick Wealth Management, Your State Agency, McGrath Real Estate Agency, 

Addisons Advisory and Bakker Built. Last but not least, I would like to thank the players, parents, coaches/team 

management and the Club’s Committee for their dedication and passion for our great game. 

Craig Bell President 
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Randwick Juniors Report 

2018 was another fantastic year with an increase in numbers of juniors taking the fields in a variety 

of competitions across age groups 6-16 years. Randwick Juniors are extremely appreciative of 

every volunteer across all village clubs who man the BBQ each Saturday at Nagle for our minis 

comp. Without their generous support the clubs would need to find other means to raise funds to 

help get our kids on the field each week. A special thanks is sent out from all junior village clubs, 

parents and players to the Randwick Rugby Foundation. Without their ongoing support we would 

not have any kids playing rugby from our district. 

Minis 

The Randwick / Easts combined minis comp was once again a fantastic success. All age groups 

from u6 through to u9 were well represented by all clubs. 

We continued this year allowing each age group to have up to 2 more players on the field at any 

time which in turn gave all of the players more game time and most teams took up the opportunity. 

(All teams were still forced to comply with the ARU pathways laws). A big thanks goes to the 

SJRU team for doing the draw to get these kids on the field. 

Minis Gala Day 

In 2018 an initiative from SJRU saw our teams travel for a minis carnival day. Teams travelled to 

all corners of Sydney this year and all reports were positive for this initiative. 

Juniors 

The juniors truly are a Sydney-wide competition consisting of a Friday night and Sunday comp. 

The Friday comp is mostly played out of Latham Park. At Randwick we continue to run a very 

good competition which saw us once again invited to host the Friday night finals series. 

The Friday night comp consists of teams from the Randwick, Easts, Canterbury, West Harbour 

and Petersham areas and most age groups consist of more than 8 teams allowing for both cup 

and plate finals. 

Sunday Comp 

With the huge effort put into recruiting by the Randwick Warriors coaching staff and office bearers 

we witnessed excellent growth. This year the Warriors had teams in the following age groups 

U13 x 2, U14 x 2, U15 x 2 and U16s. This is a great testament to the current people working 

across the Randwick District in recruiting players. All age groups performed well across the year 

with almost all teams on show during the semis. 
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Representative 

We were fortunate enough to again submit 2 x U10 and 2 x U11 teams to this year's development comps. 

All 4 teams went through their respective comps almost undefeated. If we can keep these players in rugby 

we will have strong showings for the future. With Jim Dubos' hard work and the current crop of talented 

coaches coming through we are very excited for the future. 

At the State Championships on the June long weekend we were able to field teams representing the U12, 

13, 14, and U15 age groups. 

All teams performed well and represented Randwick exhibiting the spirit of the game and playing great 

running rugby. 

Several of our players this year went on to represent the Southern Zone and also NSW junior squads. A 

huge hand of congratulation goes out to all those players. 

Randwick Junior Rugby Academy 

Now in its 7th year the Academy is a benchmark for all other districts. No one can compete with ours. 

Owing to Jim Dubos' commitment and hard work we have a range of coaches from clubs to ex-wallabies 

coaching our kids on the finer points of rugby. The real mark of success for this development program is 

that we have seen Academy members graduate to all levels of the colts program and also to the Australian 

Schools team in 2017. In 2018 we now see some of our inaugural players pulling on the Waratahs jersey 

and also training with the Australian U20s team. Well done to those players and I am sure they will 

represent Randwick Rugby proudly into the future. The girls continue to participate in the Academy and are 

training on par with the boys. 

There are a number of people and businesses that have contributed to the Juniors this year and I would 

like to acknowledge their support as without it we would not have a juniors. 

• To Chris Dunn the juniors Treasurer for keeping us afloat and the books balanced. 

• The Randwick Foundation for the ongoing investment in our juniors with every cent going directly 

into running costs for the junior’s participation in the SJRU competition. 

• To our young crew of junior refs turning up every Saturday morning to give our minis the best 

experience possible. Some of our refs come down to ref just one game and then go off to play 

school sports. Without that effort more coaches would be reffing as well as coaching on a Saturday 

morning. We also welcomed some enthusiastic Easts junior players joining us to referee at the 

minis. 

• Thanks goes to our sponsors, Bakker Built, Traffic Plan Professionals, Mambo, Core Mortgage 

Group, A/Prof Ralph Mobbs Neurosurgeon POW, Addison Advisory Group and PM Installations. 

• Jim Dubos for his tireless efforts with our rep and development program, and also the summer 

academy. 

• And lastly but not least thanks goes to all of the clubs, the players, the parents and the merry band 

of volunteers for making the season such an easy one for me personally. 

David Caple President 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

 

69 
 

Randwick Junior Rugby Academy 

We set out to create a pathway for our Junior players to  

 Represent Randwick Rugby at the State Championships.  

 Take the next step and represent Southern Zone (U14 - U16).  

 Play rep school boy rugby at the highest level (Australian School Boys).  

 Play 1st grade Colts for Randwick and be selected to play 1st grade for Randwick. 

Our goals still remain the same 

 To put a structure in place to up skill our players. 

 To improve our Village clubs performances. 

 To increase fitness and basic skill levels. 

 To improve our Rep coaches skill level by pooling the expertise from individual coaches so 

that all coaches have a broader knowledge of the game. 

 By having varied off field training sessions in order to teach squad member to cross train. 

Over the last two years we have achieved all of the above and it’s a credit to the coaching staff we 

have all working as volunteers to help your son or daughter get to the next level. 

Stu Donaldson, Geoff James, Rod Willey, Simon Poidevin and Jeff Sayle were involved as 

coaches from day one back in 2012 and are still on board today and I'm sure they are extremely 

proud of the results we have achieved below as are all our coaches. This year we have a pool of 

35 coaches with well over 1200 years’ experience. 

2018 achievements by in-form Academy Graduates 

 Tom Wong, Pat Pellegrini, Will Harrison and Ben Donaldson making their first grade 

debuts, Will and Ben while still playing Colts. 

 Will Harrison selected in the Australian U19 team that played in the World Cup in France. 

 30 former Academy players playing grade or Colts. 

 Randwick 1st and 2nd Grade Colts winning their respective competitions going through the 

season undefeated. A high percentage of these players were former Academy graduates. 

 Christian Poidevin captaining the first grade Colts team and winning the Colts first grade 

Best and Fairest. 

 Randwick Warriors (U14, 15, 16) represented at Southern Zone Championships. 

The Academy is self-funded and we are thankful to our sponsors Coogee Legion Club, Addisons 

Advisory Group and John Currenti Constructions. 

Jim Dubos 
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Randwick juniors supporting Huge Kulscar 
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Michael Daley MP supporting the Maroubra Missiles 

 

 

 

State Champs Jersey Presentation
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NSW Grade Premiers 

  
The Randwick Club was formed in 1882 and has competed in the NSW First Division Competition from 

1889 to 1899, in 1914 and from 1923 to date. There was no competitive rugby played from 1915 to 

1918. The Club fielded Reserve Grade and Third Grade sides in First Division from 1908 to 1914. In the 

years when it was not in First Division Randwick competed in what is now the Sub-Districts 

Competition. Randwick’s successes in the NSW Club Championship and Grade Premierships follow:- 

 CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP 28 

1926,1928,1930,1939,1940,1944,1946,1965,1966.1967,1973,1980,1981,1982,1983, 

1984,1985,1986,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1995,1996, 2000, 2003 

 FIRST GRADE PREMIERS 32 

1894,1895,1896,1897,1930,1934,1938,1940,1948,1959,1965,1966,1967,1971,1973, 

1974,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1984,1987,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1996, 

2000, 2004 

RESERVE GRADE PREMIERS 17 

1930,1944,1946,1957,1958,1959,1966,1978,1980,1984,1985,1991,1992,1994,1996, 2004, 2016 

THIRD GRADE PREMIERS 16 

1912,1939,1943,1953,1963,1965,1966,1979,1982,1988,1989,1992,1999, 2000, 2004, 2010 

FOURTH GRADE PREMIERS 19 

1933,1937,1938,1942,1965(JP),1967,1968,1972,1974,1980(JP),1982,1984,1987,1989,1990,1997, 

2002, 2008, 2009 

FIFTH GRADE PREMIERS 18 

1976,1977,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1985,1987,1988,1989,1991,1992,1993,1996, 

1999, 2002, 2010 

SIXTH GRADE PREMIERS 6 

1986,1988 (JP),1990,1994,1995,1996 

SEVENTH GRADE PREMIERS 1 

1990 Sub Districts Walker Cup 

FIRST GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 12 

1972,1974,1976,1978,1981(JP),1982,1986,1989,1991,1995, 2014, 2018 

SECOND GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 10 

1970,1972,1975,1984,1985,1987,1996, 2000, 2016, 2018 
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THIRD GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 5 

1984, 1985 (JP), 1991, 2012, 2017 

UNDER 19s PREMIERS 2 

1997, 2006 

 

Outstanding Club Performances by a Randwick Player 

Most Points Scored by a Randwick Player: 
  
David Knox (1982 to 1998) 
246 games: 55 Tries, 536 Goals, 510 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2842 Points. 
His total made him the highest point scorer in Australian Club rugby. 
 
Gareth Smith (1991 to 2004) 
243 games: 94 Tries, 449 Goals, 277 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2191 points. 
 
Warwick Wheeler (1966 to 1976) 
232 games: 46 Tries, 232 Goals, 260 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1932 points. 
 
Mick Stynes (1957 to 1969) 
181 games: 15 Tries, 190 Goals, 174 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1149 points. 
 
Dave Ramsay (1978 to 1984) 
139 games: 31 Tries, 226 Goals, 159 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1053 points. 
  
Most Goals in a First Grade Match: 
  
Gareth Smith (2003) 
Kicked 13 goals against Warringah on 21 June 2003 at Coogee Oval. 
  
David Knox (1994) 
Kicked 12 goals against Drummoyne on 23 April 1994 at Coogee Oval. 
  
 
Try Scoring Feats in First Grade over a Career: 
 
Only two Randwick players, Terry Ryan and Cyril Towers, scored 100 or more First Grade tries. 
 
Terry Ryan (1970 to 1975) scored 106 tries in his 6 seasons as a winger with the Randwick Club. 
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) played at outside centre and scored 104 tries in his 18 seasons.  
  
 
Tries Scored in First Grade in a Season: 
  
Terry Ryan (1970 and 1971) established in 1970 a new competition record by scoring 24 tries in 
17 games. In 1971 he broke his own record for a season by scoring 25 tries in 20 games. 
 
Jack Gray-Spence (1936) was the first Randwick player to establish a competition record. His 
achievement stood at 23 tries scored in 20 games until broken by T Ryan in 1970. 
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Tries in a First Grade Game: 
  
Michael Cleary (1961), established a new record of 7 tries in a match against Eastwood on 
19 August 1961 at Coogee Oval. This record stands today but was later equaled by a Gordon 
player. The previous record of 6 tries was held by two Randwick wingers: Owen Crossman (1924) 
and Len Slattery (1945). 
 
First Grade Games: 
  
John Maxwell (1972 to 1992) In his 21 seasons as a back row forward J Maxwell played 323 First 
Grade games, by far a Club record. He also played 428 Club games, the second highest total for 
Randwick. He appeared in 14 First Grade Grand Finals and was on the winning side 10 times. 
 
John Weber (1960 to 1973) A lock and mainstay of the pack J Weber played 234 games over his 
14 seasons, breaking the record set by C Towers.  
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942)       Best remembered as one of Australia’s greatest outside centres 
C Towers played in 233 First Grade games, then a Club record. 
  
Most Club Games: 
  
Bill Outterside (1952 to 1976) The Club record for the most matches played for Randwick is held 
by W Outterside at 432 games, of which, 205 were played in First Grade. Unlikely to be surpassed, 
his record was established over 25 seasons.     
 

 

 

Second Colts – 2018 Undefeated Premiers 
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Randwick Rugby Club Awards 

 
The following information is supplied for the benefit and interest of players, officials and 
members. Each entry is accompanied by a citation which spells out the criteria on which each 
award is based and a brief statement of the process by which each award is determined. 
 
Honorary Life Member 
 
The guidelines for the consideration and the recommendation as a Member worthy for election as a Life 
Member of the Club shall be: 
 
(a)   The nominee must have had a lengthy and distinguished career at the Club either as a player, 

coach, manager, volunteer worker or Council Member; 

(b)   The nominee must have made a considerable contribution to the game of Rugby at the Club; 

(c)   The nominee must have enhanced their personal reputation and the ethos of the Club through 
their ability, endeavour, sportsmanship and courage; 

(d)  The nominee must have accrued ten (10) points before consideration; 

(e)   Criteria points shall be allocated in the following manner: 

 
       *  fifty (50) First Grade games for the Club 2 points 
       *  one hundred (100) First Grade games for the Club 4 points 
       *  two hundred (200) games for the Club 4 points 
       *  one hundred (100) games for the Club 2 points 
       *  twenty-five (25) Colt games for the Club 1 point 
       *  fifty (50) Super Rugby games inclusive while a registered Randwick Club player 2 points 
       *  selected in twenty (25) Tests for Australia while a registered Randwick Club player 2 points 
       *  coach Super Rugby in Australia for each year 2 points 
       *  coach Australia (Wallabies) for each year 2 points 
       *  performing the role of Coach for the Club for each year 1 point 
       *  performing the role of Team Manager for each year 1 point 
       *  service to the Club or service to the Council for each service year 1 point 

 

Comments: The above guidelines can be found in By-law 6 of the Club’s By-laws. The Life Members 

Association must vet and make recommendations to the Council of members considered worthy for 

election as a Life Member pursuant to Rule 5(4) of the Club Rules. This Rule refers to the power of the 

Club to elect Honorary Life Members. The Association is aided by its own Awards Subcommittee which 

carries out preparatory work and reviews nominees for consideration as Life Members. The 

Subcommittee, where possible, makes its recommendations to the Life Members Association which, in 

turn, forwards its advice to the Randwick Rugby Council. The Council then decides, based on a three 

fourths majority vote of Councillors, which names, if any, are put to the Annual General Meeting for 

election by Members where, again, a three-fourths majority is required by secret ballot. 

The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy 

The recipient shall be a player possessing the qualities of sportsmanship, courage and modesty. He 

should display a willingness to subordinate his personal interest to those of his Fellows and his Team 

and generously others along the pathway of Rugby and along the broader highway of life. 

 
Comments: Any member may nominate a player for this award though, in practice, such nomination 

usually comes from a group of senior players referred to as the Player Committee. The nomination(s) 

are put to the Life Members Association which makes a recommendation to the Randwick Rugby 
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Council. The Council is the final arbiter with respect to this award and does so based on a three fourths 

majority vote by Councillors. As with the Life Member nominations the Association’s Awards 

Subcommittee plays an intermediary role in terms of preparatory work and reviews with respect to 

nominees for this award. The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy is not necessarily awarded annually. 

Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame 

The criteria for consideration and inclusion in the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame are: 

 The inductee must have been a distinguished Randwick First Grade Player 

 The inductee must have made a considerable contribution to the game of Rugby and to Randwick 

 The inductee must have enhanced his and Randwick’s reputation by his ability, sportsmanship 

and character 

Comments: Any member may nominate a potential inductee. In practice, however, such nominations 

are usually considered by the Life Members Association and forwarded to a Hall of Fame Committee 

comprising the Club President, a Convener appointed by the Randwick Rugby Council, the Club 

Archivist and two other Council appointees. The final decision regarding inductees rests with the 

Council. The inductees are selected by a vote supported by three fourths of the Councilors. 

Meritorious Service Award 

The criteria for the presentation of the Meritorious Service Award are that the recipient should be a non-

playing member who has rendered outstanding service to the Randwick Football Club. 

Comments: Any member may nominate another member for this Award. Nominations are then put to 

the Life Members Association which makes recommendations to the Randwick Rugby Council. The 

Association is assisted by its Awards Subcommittee which gathers information on the nominees and 

conducts preliminary reviews. The Council makes the final decision on this Award based on a vote by 

Councilors requiring a three fourths majority. The Award is not necessarily presented annually. 

The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy 

The recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-mates for his commitment to fitness, 

willingness to learn, loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to mastering the fundamentals 

of the Randwick Brand of Rugby.  

Comments: Unlike all other awards this trophy is judged by the Player Committee and not by the 

coaches or other Club officials. The Committee includes the Club Captain and the Player 

Representative on the Randwick Rugby Council. The Trophy is awarded annually. 

The Ron Don Memorial Trophy 

The Ron Don Memorial Trophy is awarded to the most improved player in the Club. 

Comments: This Trophy was introduced in 1967 to honour Ron Don for his dedicated service to the 

Club and his continuous support of the players. He was Honorary Timekeeper 1955-59 and Assistant 

Honorary Secretary from 1957 until his death in April, 1967.  Ron Don served in both positions 1957-59. 

Each year the winner of this Trophy is decided upon by the Club Coach and Assistant Coaches. 

 

 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

77 
 

The Dick Quinlan Trophy 

The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy is awarded to the best clubman in Fourth Grade. 

Comments: Presented to the Club by Dick Quinlan in 1962 this Trophy is awarded annually. 

The donor did this in order to focus attention on the players in the, then, lowest grade. He, himself, 

never played above this level but was proud to be a former Randwick player. Following his retirement 

Dick Quinlan gave many years of service to the Easts-Randwick JRU as a coach with the Randwick 

Central Club and later as its President. The recipient of this Trophy is decided upon by the Fourth 

Grade Coach and Manager. Dick Quinlan passed away in 1975. 

The Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy 

The Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy is awarded to the Grade Team that scores the most number of tries 

in a season. 

Comments: Promoted by the Life Members Association, the establishment of the Laurie Argue 

Memorial Trophy was endorsed by the Randwick Rugby Council. The Trophy serves to perpetuate the 

memory of Laurie Argue, a long-time and enthusiastic devotee of the running game. It is designed to 

recognise the team(s) that scores the most tries in a season and the respective coach(es). The 

selection of the team(s) is determined from the Team Sheets completed by the Managers and the 

cumulative records of the Club Statistician. 

The Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

The Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy recognises the best Colts Clubman of the year. 

Comments: This Trophy was designed to honour the memory of Aiden Wilson, a talented inside centre 

who played in the Randwick Under 19 Colts Team of 2006. Tragically, he was killed in an unfortunate 

incident on Sydney Harbour on 25 November 2006. The recipient is decided annually by a joint decision 

made by the Colts Coordinator and Colts Coaches. 

 

The remaining Club Awards are determined on the basis of the following two criteria: 

 Statistics kept on Manager Team Sheets and the records of the Club Statistician 

 Committees: the Club Coach and Assistant Coaches for Seniors and the Colts Coordinator and 

Team Coaches for the Colts. 

 
 
 
 
Awards based on Statistics 
 

 Milestone Awards 

 Best and Fairest Awards 

 Randwick Rugby Trophy for the Best and Fairest Player in the Club* 

 CH Towers Trophy for the season’s leading try scorer 
 
* From the Best and Fairest the Club Coach makes the final selection 
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Awards based on Committee decisions 
 

 Best Clubman of the Year 

 Rookie of the Year 

 Club’s Most Valuable Player 

 Best New Player in the Club 

 Colts Player of the Year 

 Coach’s Best All-Rounder on and off the Field # 

 C J Windon Trophy (for the Best Back Rower) 
 
# This Award is made by the Club Coach. He may seek advice from the Assistant Coaches 

 
 

 

 
First Colts – Undefeated Premiers 2018 
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Randwick Rugby Club  

 

President 

  

1923 - 1938 

1939 - 1953 

1954 - 1966 

1967 - 1975 

1976 - 1988 

1989 - 1994 

1995 - 2002 

2003 - 2005 

2006 - 2009 

2010 

2011 - 2012 

2012 

 

Deputy President 

  

1973 - 1975 

1976   

1977   

1978 - 1988 

1989 - 1990 

1991  

1992 - 1994 

1995 

 

1996 

1997 - 1998 

1999 - 2001 

2002 - 2003 

 

 

J M Dunningham 

C R Davidson 

F W Meagher 

H J C Kahl 

R W Meagher 

P K Court 

J L Sayle 

D C Cleary 

I A North 

B M Jorgensen 

A F Bell 

R S F Dwyer 

 

 

 

R W Meagher 

R S F Dwyer 

P M Willcox 

P K Court 

J Cotis 

R Pye 

S Wheeler 

J Cotis 

I M Kennedy 

I M Kennedy 

J Tuxworth 

B Sobb 

J Murray 

Hon. Secretary 

  

1923 - 1924 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1931 

1932 - 1941 

1942 - 1943 

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1950 

1951 - 1966 

1967 - 1968 

1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1978 

1978 

1979 - 1985 

1985 – 1988 

1989 - 1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2003 

2004 - 2005 

2006 - 2018 

2018 

  

 

 

E C Green 

W K Stewart 

N E Eglese 

M M Atkins 

W G Archer 

J V Maloney 

V Ford 

H J Kahl 

R B Ford 

A M Moore 

P M Willcox 

K R Devlin 

P M Willcox 

K Bull 

R Graham 

V Singer 

E Turner 

D Eggins 

R Illidge 

D Eggins 

F Back 
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Hon. Treasurer 

  

1923 - 1926 

1927 - 1942 

1943  

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1954 

1955 

1955 – 1956 

1957 - 1960 

1961 - 1964 

1965 - 1966 

1967 - 1972 

1973 - 1977 

1978 

1979 - 1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988 - 1989 

1990 - 2003 

2004 - 2005  

2006 - 2009 

2010 - 2013  

2014 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

C Bluett 

E K Dobbs 

J V Maloney 

M M Atkins 

J F Lane 

E Howe 

J F Lane 

A Blomberg 

R W Meagher 

A Dumbleton 

R W Meagher 

C H New 

K Bull 

N Frumar 

P McGuinn 

A Manollaros 

K Campbell 

P M Willcox 

J L Sayle 

D Henry 

I Bonnette 

R W Meagher 

Q Olde 

I Bonnette 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Club Coach  

 

1923 - 1930            H W Baker 

1931 – 1953           F M Meagher 

1954 

1855 – 1957 

1958 – 1960 

1961 - 1962 

1963 - 1964 

1965 - 1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1981 

1982 - 1983 

1984 - 1988 

1989 

1990 - 1991 

1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2001 

2002 

2003 - 2004 

2004  

2005 

2006 

2007  

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011  

2012 

2013 - 2014 

2015 – 2017 

2018 

C G Stone 

C Windon 

C Thornley 

H Stephen 

C Thornley 

J Hovey 

R Outterside 

R S F Dwyer  

J L Sayle 

R S F Dwyer 

A A Gaffney 

J L Sayle 

A A Gaffney 

J Maxwell 

J L Sayle 

J Maxwell 

G Gavalas 

Glen Ella 

J Sayle/M Kennedy 

T Louden 

M Giacheri/J Evans 

M Giacheri 

G Ella 

M Giacheri 

C Morrison 

J Maxwell 

W Kelly 

S Fraser 

O Finegan 
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Club Captain 

1981 – 1988 S Wheeler 

1989 – 1991 P Willey 

1992 R Keyes 

1993 – 1994 R Willey 

1995   T Kava 

1996 – 2001 R Willey 

2002 – 2003 D Grant 

2004 – 2005 C Houston 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009- 2010 

2011   

D Grant 

K Turner 

N McMahon 

D Spencer 

A Savovski / T Weber 

2012                        L McKay 

2013                        A Halangahu 

2014 T Bennett 

2015 D Parsons 

2016 – 2017 P Hodgetts 

2018 P Hodgetts / D O’Donahue 
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First Grade Captains First Grade Captains (continued) 

1923  W K Stewart 1986-1987 

1988 

1989 

1990-1991 

1992-1993 

1994 

1995 

1996  

1997 

1998 - 1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

 

2004-2005 

2006-2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

 

 

 

 

B Burke 

T Kava / B Burke 

M Murray / B Burke 

M Murray 

T P Kava 

L Walker 

T P Kava 

P Cheika 

P Cheika / M Cheika 

M Cheika 

D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

D McRae 

L Donald / D McRae/ O 

Finegan 

S Berne 

C Houston 

C Houston / S Hoiles 

A Halangahu 

G Fairbanks / P Phibbs 

T McGann 

T Browne 

S Lam 

S Figg / F Asa 

D Horwitz / M Baldwin 

M Baldwin / A Deegan 

A Deegan / S Croke 

L Anderson / D Horwitz / J 

Johnson / B Starkey  

1924 F W Meagher 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1930 

1931 - 1934 

1935 

1936 - 1937 

1938 - 1942 

1944 - 1947 

1948 - 1949 

1950 

1951 - 1952 

1953 

 

1954 - 1956 

1957   

1958 - 1961 

1962 

1963 - 1968 

1969 - 1970 

1971   

1972 

1973 - 1975 

1976 

1977  

1978-1979 

1977 – 1980 

1981-1982 

1983 – 1984 

1985 

L Palfreyman 

F W Meagher 

J O’Connor 

C H Towers 

V Richards 

C H Towers 

J Cremin 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

J Hovey 

N Shehadie 

R M Tooth 

R Outterside 

K Catchpole/A Moore 

K Catchpole 

J Quick 

K Catchpole 

W Outterside 

A Norley 

I Kennedy 

A Jones 

I Kennedy 

M Ella 

R Evan 

M Ella 

S Poidevin 
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200 Senior Club Games 
 

WT Outterside 432 PM  Slyney 229 

JM Maxwell 428 D Ryan 227 

JL Sayle 379 R Evans 224 

RJ Willey 365 MS Young 222 

G Logan 356 W Melrose 222 

RSF Dwyer 347 D O’Shea 222 

V Singer 324 RH Day 220 

M Kondilios 312 KL Bull 219 

SA Wheeler 310 L Davidson 219 

P Cheika 296 P O'Sullivan 217 

RP Illidge 289 JW Turner 217 

PE Willey 287 J Riley 216 

M Cheika 286 KAP Phibbs 214 

G Karras 286 S Baker 213 

J Picone 283 A Bargenda 213 

JM Weber 282 D Rapp 211 

LJ Walker 278 E Jones 210 

RN Tomlinson 276 A Norley 210 

J Waqanabaravi 272 AA Gaffney 209 

K Leasuasu 264 B Hayes 208 

I Hartley 262 DP Habler 206 
G Sommerville 259 KG Brown 203 

T Maxwell 257 D Grant 203 

TG Evans 256 M Kemp 202 

M Kiernan 256 MJ Murray 202 

T Cripps 254 R Pye 202 

P Antoniades 253 C Seroukas 202 

M Della Marta 253 T Tanner 202 

M  Ramsay 253 G Stores 200 

D Knox 250 J Tuxworth 200 

M Spurgeon 246    

G Smith 243    

A Sing 241    

PG Johnson 239    

T Purdy 239    

A Halangahu 237    

IM Kennedy 236    

WT Matthews 234    

K Seiler 234    

CH Towers 234    

DA Watson 234    

P(Peter) Wright 232    
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100 First Grade Games 

 

 

John Maxwell  323 

John Weber  234 

Cyril Towers  233 

Lloyd Walker  225 

Peter Johnson  215 

David Knox  213 

Michael Cheika 212 

Bill Outterside  205 

Alan Sing  200 

Ken Catchpole 177 

Nick Shehadie  175 

Mick Murray  172 

Ray Evans  163 

Mal Murray  162 

Tim Kava  160 

Jeff Sayle  160 

Warwick Waugh 157 

Antonio Halangahu 157 

Nick Howlett  152 

Eddie Jones  147 

Bob Outterside 146 

Mick Young  143 

Gavin Boneham 141 

Keith Gordon  141 

Joe Picone  141 

Ian Kennedy  140 

Glen Ella  134 

Jack Hovey  134 

Mick Cremin  132 

Tony Moore  132 

Keith Cross  131 

Jack O’Connor 131 

Alan Norley  131 

Adrian Jones  131 

Patrick Phibbs  131 

Len Palfreyman 130 

Pat Slyney  128 

Brad Burke  127 

Acura Niuqila  127 

Gareth Smith  126 

Simon Poidevin 125 

Gary Ella  123 

Chris Houston  118 

Ewen McKenzie 116 

Mick O’Gorman 114 

Adam Freier              113 

Steve Brennan 113 

Tony Purdy  112 

Don Furness  111 

Mark Ella  110 

Owen Finegan  110 

Terry Ryan  109 

Mick Rosenberg 108 

Willie Gordon  104 

Omar Hassanein 104 

Terry Reid  103 

Keith Windon  103 

Les Bedford  102 

Denis Cleary  102 

John McGowan 102 

John Cole  102 

Stu Rutherford  102 

Wally Meagher 100 

Mick Stynes  100
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The Wally Meagher Trophy 

(Outstanding Clubman) 

1970 K W Catchpole  1992 M Spurgeon 

1971 P G  Johnson  1997 P Cheika 

1972 J L Sayle  2002 R Willey 

1973 J M Weber  2006 C Whitaker 

1974 W T  Outterside  2007 A Freier 

1975 RSF Dwyer  2008 S Hoiles 

1976 G Lisle  2009 P Phibbs 

1977 I M  Kennedy  2010 A James 

1980 J Maxwell  2013 C Barron 

1984 M Ella  2017 P Hodgetts 

1985 S Wheeler     

1990 E Jones     

 

Best and Fairest Award 

1965 D Saunders  1991 A McDonald 

1966 K Israel  1992 D Kelaher 

1967 K Catchpole  1993 M Girvan 

1968 V Greenfield  1994 D Jepson 

1968 V Singer  1995 C Whitaker 

1969 M Stynes  1996 L Donald 

1970 J Murray  1997 B Gill 

1970 R Cameron  1998 L Kama 

1971 A Hope  1999 D Ryan 

1972 D Watson  2000 L Donald 

1973 J Berne  2001 D Grant 

1974 J Davis  2002 D McCrae 

1975 M McMahon  2003 D Haare 

1976 J Maxwell  2004 S Berne 

1977 G McElhone  2005 E Wyllie 

1978 J Tuxworth  2006 A Halangahu 

1979 W Taylor  2007 M Whittleston 

1980 D Taylor  2008 S Kepu 

1981 A Back  2009 B Orbell 

1982 E Jones  2010 L Taukeiaho 

1983 P Willey  2011 T McGann 

1984 B Burke  2012 P Noriega 

1985 G Boneham  2013 M Bannon 

1986 M Clift  2014 F Asa 

1987 I Tomasiello  2015 M Baldwin 

1988 L Walker  2016 A Deegan 

1990 A  James  2017 B Starkey 

1989 S Poidevin  2018 J Johnson 
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Ron Don Trophy 

(Most Improved Player) 

 

1967 M Carpenter  1993 D Jones 

1968 B Fahey  1994 J Picone 

1969 K Bullivant  1995 J Thompson 

1970 K Phibbs  1996 C Whitaker 

1971 C Allsop  1997 B Gill 

1972 C Allsop  1998 O Hassanein 

1973 J Davis  1999 A Freier 

1974 G Pearse  2000 J Pritchard 

1975 W Mackey  2001 J Shelley 

1976 A Purdy  2002 A Freier 

1977 G McElhone  2003 M Turinui 

1978 G Conacher  2004 S Hoiles 

1979 W Taylor  2005 E Wyllie 

1980 M Ella  2006 A Aiken 

1981 J Tuxworth  2007 D Edwards 

1982 E Jones  2008 D Vizer 

1983 T Kava  2009 D Parsons 

1984 T Evans  2010 J Terry 

1985 E Jones  2011 M Toa 

1986 E McKenzie  2012 T Bennett 

1987 E McKenzie  2013 T Goodbody 

1988 M Cheika  2014 J Harris 

1989 P Kearns  2015 M Short 

1990 J Flett  2016 L Anderson 

1991 H Charalambous  2017 E Kennedy 

1992 M Kemp  2018 L Taie 

       

 

Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in Fourth grade) 

 

1962 V Lee  1990 P Antoniades 

1963 W O’Brien  1991 L Davison 

1964 R Finnie  1992 M Wild 

1965 P Court  1993 S Brown 

1966 P Kennedy  1994 R Keyes 

1967 P Fahey  1995 R Willey 

1968 G Lisle  1996 D White 

1969 W McKinley  1997 A Henrys 

1970 G Lisle  1998 C Martlew 

1971 K Robinson  1999 A Mann 

1972 G Farrant  2000 C Trimmer 

1973 C Faulks  2001 B Bishop 

1974 C Walker  2003 J Shelley 

1975 R Slater  2004 L Galpern 
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1976 M McMahon  2005 E Wyllie 

1977 I Hartley  2006 N Davies 

1978 K Harron  2007 D Gee 

1979 R Day  2008 L McKay 

1980 F Back  2009 S Lolo 

1981 G Stokes  2010 T Weber 

1982 M Stokes  2011 T Martin 

1983 W Negus  2012 S Malone 

1984 M Rains  2013 S Malone 

1985 P O’Sullivan  2014 M Kite 

1986 D Rapp  2015 } T Martin 

1987 P Kennedy  2015 } J Musgrove 

1988 S Morgan  2016 L Roughton 

1989 R Illidge  2017 R Hoyles 

2002 P Ringland  2018 S Satuala 

 

Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

(Colts Clubman of the Year) 

 

2007 A Patty  2014 D O’Donahue 

2008 M Gibson  2015 N Kellaway 

2009 L Henry  2016 W Anderson 

2010 T Jeffs  2017 C Gleave 

2011 J Weatherall  2018 J Feltis 

2012 M Meoli     

2013 J Armstrong     

 

Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy 

(team with most tries in a season) 

 

2007 First and Third Grade (Equal 76 tries)  2013 Second Grade 131 tries 

2008 Fourth Grade 183 tries  2014 Third Grade  79 tries 

2009 Second Grade 139 tries  2015 Third Grade 97 tries 

2010 Second Grade 122 tries  2016 Second Grade 92 tries 

2011 Third Grade 129 tries  2017 Second Grade 93 tries 

2012 Third Grade 88 tries  2018 Second Grade 62 tries 

       

 

The W T (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy 

 

2010 T Browne  2014 F Asa 

2011 S Foley  2015 J Hayson 

2012 D Ferguson  2016 J Armstrong 

2013 C Barron  2017 L Anderson 

   2018 N Robinson 
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Rookie of the Year 

2007 D Kroll  2013 W Munro 

2008 T Luxford  2014 A Kellaway 

2009 P Hodgetts  2015 H Hutchison 

2010 M McKay  2016 H Goddard 

2011 E Ford  2017 J Hayson 

2012 T Hepetema  2018 J Cooper 

       

 

C J Windon Trophy 

(Best backrower in the club) 

2013 T Connor 

2014 T Connor 

2015 M Baldwin 

2016 M Baldwin 

2017 S Croke 

2018 J Johnson 

 

C H Towers Trophy 

(season leading try scorer) 

2018 
C Yassmin 

11 Tries 

 

Most Valuable Player — Grade 

2018 C Betham 

 

Most Games For The Club In Grade — 2018 

Shane Byrne 28 games 

 

Most Games For The Club In Colts — 2018 

James McNeill 21 games 

 

Coaches Best All Rounder On And Off The Field 

2018 Anthony Vasilis 
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Meritorious Service Award 

 

2008 

JD    Brewer 

JW  Dingle 

DS Eggins 

AD James 

DC Long 

PN Raftos 

MA Wheeler 

 

2009 

RB  Curtis 

T   McMahon 

BG Sobb 

 

2012 

DG Alexander 

RA Devine 

JE Dubos 

RC Jennings 

MJ Lewis 

CG Luxford 

 

2013 

B Bishop 

D Dowe 

A Stutchbury 

 
 

2014 

S Holton 

P Meagher 

J Picone 

 

2016 
M Giachieri 

  

 

 
Randwick Magic Rugby and Classic Wallabies in Hong Kong 
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Represented Australia [105]  
 

Player 
 

Player 
 

Player 
 

H W Baker [Harald] 3 D C Furness [Don] 1 A S Niuqila [Acura] 3 

H S Barker [Herb] 7 M J Giteau [Matt] 103 D S O'Callaghan [Denis]  

K Beale [Kurtley] 82 K M Gordon [Keith] 2 J A O'Connor [Jack] 4 

J E Berne [John] 1 G M Gregan * [George]  129 J B O'Donnell [John] 3 

C D Blades [Cameron] 1 N Hanigan [Ned] 19 R Outterside [Bob] 2 

A J Bowers [Allen] 2 P F Hawthorne [Phil] 2 J R L Palfreyman [Len] 4 

J E Brass [John] 12 E L J Heinrich [Ted] 10 G K Pearse [Gary] 9 

J V Brown [Jim] 9 V W Heinrich [Vince] 2 B J C Piper [Brian] 6 

A J Buchan [Arthur]  7 S A Hoiles [Stephen]  16 S P Poidevin * [Simon] 58 

B T Burke [Brad] 1 J C Holbeck [James] 8 B J Porter [Basil]  

M P Burke [Matt] 23 M L Howell [Max] 5 K M Ramsay [Mack] 4 

B C Caldwell [Bruce] 1 P G Johnson * [Peter] 42 R Rankin [Ron]  

D I Campese [David] 101 P A Jones [Peter] 2 T W Reid [Terry] 5 

K W Catchpole * [Ken] 27 J Jones-Hughes [Jason] 
 

V Richards [Vic] 5 

R M Cawsey [Roy] 3 P K Jorgensen [Peter] 2 M S Rogers [Matt] 7 

M Chisholm [Mark] 48 P B Judd [Bruce] 8 G Ruebner [George] 2 

M A Cleary [Michael] 6 D K Junee [Darren] 2 P Samu [Peter] 7 

J W Cole [John] 24 T P Kava [Tim]  J L Sayle [Jeff] 1 

J F Cremin * [Mick] 3 P N Kearns * [Phil] 67 N M Shehadie * [Nick] 30 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 T P Kelaher [Tim] 31 R Simmons [Rob] 92 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 S M Kepu [Sekope] 101 P V Smith [Phil] 8 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 D J Knox [David] 13 C G Stone [Gordon] 1 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 A Magro [Adam]  R N Thornett [Dick] 11 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 B P Malouf [Bruce]  1 R M Tooth * [Dick] 2 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 F W Meagher [Wally] 8 C H T Towers * [Cyril] 19 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 D A Mitchell [Drew] 71 L Tui [Lukhan] 11 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 S W J Miller [Syd] 1 M P Turinui [Morgan] 20 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 A M Moore [Tony]  L F Walker [Lloyd] 8 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 C V Morrissey [Tug] 2 W W Waugh [Warwick] 8 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 A R Morton  [Alan] 11 R E Westfield [Bob]  6 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 P J Mulligan [Patsy] 1 C J Whitaker * [Chris] 28 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 M A Murray [Mick]  W J White [Bill] 3 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 A McDonald [Adrian]  J L Williams [John]  3 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 B S McDonald [Barry] 2 C J Windon * [Col] 20 

  E McKenzie [Ewen] 51 K S Windon [Keith] 3 

    K J Wright [Ken] 9 

* Australian Captains                                                               Tests played as at 16 November 2018 
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The Wallaby tourists who did not play in tests are: 

John Francis, Jason Jones-Hughes, Tim Kava, Adrian McDonald, Adam Magro, Tony Moore, Mick 

Murray, Denis O’Callaghan, Basil Porter, Ron Rankin. 

Notes: The aforementioned list of Australian representatives includes: 

 Members of NSW sides from 1923 to 1928 inclusive, who played against New Zealand, Maori and 

British sides and all of whom have since been accorded Australian representative status. 

 Members of the 1939/40 Australian side which arrived in Britain at the outbreak of World War 2, 

played no games in Europe, and who have been accorded test representative status.  

 George Gregan is Australia’s most capped test player with 139 tests [129 with Randwick]. David 

Campese with 101 tests [74 with Randwick] and Simon Poidevin [49 tests with Randwick] were 

previously Australia’s most capped players, as were Peter Johnson [42] and Nick Shehadie [30]. 

  
Captains of Australia [12] 
 
Ken Catchpole, Mark Ella, Rocky Elsom, George Gregan, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, Simon 

Poidevin, Nick Shehadie, Dick Tooth, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker and Col Windon. 

  
Wallabies Hall of Fame  
 
The following eight Randwick players have been inducted in the Wallabies Hall of Fame: 

 David Campese 623 

 Ken Catchpole 455 

 Mark Ella 616 

 Wally Meagher 202  

 Simon Poidevin 614  

 Sir Nicholas Shehadie 352 

 Cyril Towers 230 

 Col Windon 33 
 
 

IRB Hall of Fame 

The following six Randwick players have been inducted to the IRB Hall of Fame  

 DI Campese 

 KW Catchpole 

 RSF Dwyer 

 MG Ella 

 GM Gregan 

 Sir NM Shehadie 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club 

Australian Representation 
 

Explanatory Note 
 
Australian Representation, in this report, refers to Australian teams which played against 
international teams from overseas. Acknowledged by the Australian Rugby Union, they include: 
 
Australia A (earlier years called Australia XV and Australia B) 
Junior Wallabies (now referred to as Emerging Wallabies) 
Australian Colts (some referred to as U23 Wallabies or Emerging Wallabies as well) 
Australian Barbarians (included the matches against International Teams only) 
Australian Imperial Forces (games against Australia) 
 
Randwick Australian Representatives  
 

1951 An Australian XV v New Zealand 
NM Shehadie 

 
1968 Junior Wallabies 
 JW Cole 
 
1971 Junior Wallabies v South Africa 
 RL Fairfax  I Fisher  JR Murray 
 
1972 Australian U23 Colts tour of Japan, Hong Kong and Taiwan 
 JR Murray  TJ Ryan CP Allsop 

 
Randwick representatives in Rugby World Cups – Wallabies unless otherwise listed 
 
1987  
Matthew P. Burke  
David Campese  
Simon Poidevin 
 
1991  
David Campese  
Tony Daly 
John Flett 
Phil Kearns  
David Knox 
Adrian McDonald 
Simon Poidevin  
Ewen McKenzie  
Coach - Bob Dwyer  
 
1995  
Phil Kearns  
David Campese  
George Gregan  
Ewen McKenzie  
Tony Daly  
Warwick Waugh 
Mark Giachieri - Italy 
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1999  
George Gregan  
Owen Finegan  
Chris Whitaker  
Chris Latham  
Phil Kearns 
Mark Giachieri - Italy 
Jason Jones-Hughes - Wales 
 
2003  
Mat Rogers  
Chris Latham  
Matt Giteau  
Morgan Turinui  
George Gregan  
Chris Whitaker 
Coach: Eddie Jones 
James Pritchard - Canada 
 
2007  
Drew Mitchell  
Matt Giteau  
Chris Latham  
Rocky Elsom  
Adam Freier  
Stephen Hoiles  
George Gregan  
Mark Chisholm 
James Pritchard - Canada 
 
2011  
Kurtley Beale 
Rocky Elsom 
 
2015  
Kurtley Beale 
Matt Giteau 
Sekope Kepu 
Drew Mitchell 
Coach: Michael Cheika 
James Pritchard - Canada 
Phil Mack – Canada 
Nemani Nadolo - Fiji 
Chris Baumann – USA 
Al McFarland – USA 
Coach: Eddie Jones - Japan 
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Australian Under 20/21 Representatives [48] 
 

1980 Glen J Ella, Gary A Ella, George Gavalas, Tim Lane, Lloyd J Walker 

1983 Matthew P Burke, Michael E Murray 

1984 Timothy P Kava  

1988 Michael Cheika, Phillip N Kearns 

1989 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1990 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1991 Peter Jorgensen 

1993 Owen D A Finegan, Peter Jorgensen, David Kelaher       

1994 James Holbeck, Peter Jorgensen, Craig McMullen, Stuart Pinkerton 

1996 Chris Latham 

1997 Jason Jones-Hughes, Luke Mann, Fosi Pala'amo, Christian Warner 

1998 Brendan Williams 

1999 Matthew Bowman, Shaun Berne, William Gordon, Brendan Williams 

2000 Matthew Bowman, Adam Freier, William Gordon 

2001 Adam Freier 

2002 Morgan Turinui 

2003 Rocky Elsom, Lei Tomiki 

2004 Rocky Elsom, Rex Tapuai, Lei Tomiki 

2008 Ratu Nasiganiyavi [U20] 

2013 Mark Baldwin [U20] 

2014 David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway [U20] 

2015 Sam Croke, Andrew Deegan, Ned Hanigan, Olly Kamp, Andrew Kellaway, Lukhan Lealaiaulotu-Tui 

[U20] 

2016  Vunipola Fifita, Simon Kennewell, Lukhan Tui [U20] 

2017 Harrison Chapman, Harrison Goddard, Henry Hutchison, Simon Kennewell, Dan Matthew,  James 

Ramm [U20] 

2018 Will Harrison [U19] 
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Australian Sevens Representatives (44) 
 
Brad Burke 
Vincent Byrne 
David Campese 
John Carse 
Sam Croke 
Nick Cummins 
Glen Ella 
Mark Ella 
Sam Figg 
John Flett 
Shaun Foley 
Harrison Goddard 
William Gordon 
Stephen Hoiles 
Henry Hutchison 

Darren Junee 
Wise Kativerata 
David Kelaher 
Timothy Kelaher 
Simon Kennewell 
Daniel Kroll 
Arthur Little 
Shawn Mackay 
John Maxwell 
Craig McMullen 
Lochie Miller 
Luke Milton 
Acura Niuqila 
Ben O'Donnell 
Gerry O'Neill 

Gary Pearse 
Patrick Phibbs 
Dylan Pietsch  
Simon Poidevin 
Qele Ratu 
Triston Reilly 
Matthew Rogers 
Gareth Smith 
Morgan Turinui 
Henry Vanderglas 
Tim Walsh 
Brendan Williams 
Kenneth Wright 
Timothy Wright 

 
 
Commonwealth Games 2018 Rugby Sevens    Ben O’Donnell 
 
 
Australia’s Deaf Rugby Team Representative      Lucas Marquardt 
 
 
Australian Combined Services Rugby / ASRU / ADFRU * (WIP) 
Logan Chin 
Ricky Dumigan 
Jason Harrington 
Ben Jones 
Tony Luxford 
Zane Mitchell 
Jeremy Nelson 
Tait O’Sullivan 
Shaun Richardson 
Daniel Robertson 
 
 

 
First Colts 
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Represented New South Wales [200]  
 
Aho R Richie 1  Caldwell BC Bruce 3  Duncan JL       Jackie 10 

Baker HW Harald 1  Campese DI * David 56  Dyson FJ Fletcher 4 

Barker HS Herb 9  Carlton JA Jimmy 2  Ella GA Gary 27 

Barker S Scott 1  Carraro M Matt 46  Ella GJ Glen 25 

Barrie W Bill 17  Catchpole KW *  Ken 26  Ella MG * Mark 26 

Beale KJ Kurtley 125  Cawsey RM Roy 4  Elsom RD Rocky 65 

Bedford LS Les 4  Cheika M Michael 3  Evans CD Charlie 6 

Berne JE John 4  Choromanski M Michael 3  Fahey EJ * Ted 7 

Berne SE Shaun 46  Clarke C Charlie 1  Fairfax RL Russell 5 

Blades CD Cameron 19  Cleary D Denis 2  Finegan ODA Owen 6 

Bolden R Ron 3  Cleary MA Michael 6  Finlay AN * Huck 5 

Boneham G Gavin 1  Cole JW John 20  Fisher I Igo 2 

Bowers AJA Allen 8  Coleman W Bill 1  Fitzgerald JF   1 

Bowman M Matt 1  Cornelson R Rudi 1  Flett JA John 4 

Brass JE John 10  Craig GK Greg 4  Francis JA John 1 

Braund AW Arthur 1  Cremin JF * Mick 10  Fraser J A  John 5 

Brown JV Jim 9  Cross KA Keith 27  Freier A L  * Adam 84 

Buchan AJ Arthur 6  Crossman OC    Owen 15  Furness D C  Don 12 

Burke BT Brad 8  Daly AJ    *  Tony 29  Galloway W  * Pony 17 

Burke MP Matt 15  Deegan A Andrew 1  Garvey N G  Norm 3 

    Duggan T Tom 3     

 
 
 

 
Giacheri M Mark 3  Manlowe John 1  Ramsay KM Mack 11 

Gordon K M Keith 5  Marron JH John 1  Rankin R Ron 3 

Gray-Spence J John 5  Marsden WA Warren 2  Rathie DS David 3 

Haare DT John 3  Marshall AA Arnold 4  Reid TW Terry 11 

Hadwin J John 2  Maxwell J John 1  Richards V * Vic 18 

Hanigan N Ned 19  McDonald A Adrian 2  Riley ON  Oliver 9 

Hanna A Alf 4  McKenzie EJA Ewen 37  Robinson R       Reece 20 

Hardiman VJ Vince 1  McMahon J John 1  Rogers MS          Mat 18 

Harrison Will   McMahon J * Jim 13  Rowntree RMW  Ralph 4 

Hassanein O Omar 2  McRae DN    *      Duncan 35  Ruebner G George 3 

Hawthorne PF Phil 3  Meagher F W       Wally 20  Ryan TJ Terry 2 

Heinrich ELJ Ted 11  Miller M Michael 5  Sayle JL Jeff 3 

Heinrich VW Vince 3  Miller RK Ross 1  Scott A  Allen 1 

Henlen F * Fred 28  Miller SWJ Syd 13  Sheehan WBJ Billy 1 

Hepetema  T Terrence 1  Miller VCL Vic 2  Shehadie * NM Nick 37 

Herd HV Harold 2  Mitchell DA Drew 39  Short Mitchell 5 

Hoiles SA Stephen 64  Moore AM Tony 2  Simmons Rob 13 

Hooton JR John 7  Morrison JH John 3  Slee H N   Herman 2 

Horton P Jack 1  Morton AR Alan 18  Smith PV Phil 9 

Horwitz D David 27  Mowen BW Ben 27  Stone CG * Gordon 8 

Hovey J Jack 1  Mulligan PJ Patsy 2  Stynes MJ Mick 1 

Howell ML Max 5  Murray MA * Mick 11  Surman F * Frank 15 

Howlett NJ Nick 5  Neilsen S Scott 2  Tanner WH Bill 3 

Hoy J Jonnie 4  Nethery M Michael 2  Tapuai RH Rex 3 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

97 
 

Hume HJ Harold 2  Niuqila AS        Acura 12  Thornett KE Ken 5 

Jones A Adrian 1  
 

O'Callaghan DS  Denis 3  Thornett RN Dick 4 

Jones E Eddie 12  O'Connor JA Jack 11  Tooth R M  Dick 3 

Jones PA Peter 2  O'Connor WB Bil 8  Towers C H T  * Cyril 72 

Jorgensen PK Peter 14  O'Donnell JB John 8  Purnell FA  Frank 2 

Judd PB             Bruce 20  O'Gorman M Mick 2  Turinui M P  Morgan 64 

Junee DK Darren 19  O'Neill GW Gerry 1  Walker L F  Lloyd 25 

Kativerata W Wise 3  Outram GH George 6  Walsh A S  Adam 1 

Kava TO Tim 34  Outterside R Bob 6  Warner C P  Christian 41 

Kearns PN * Phil 73  Outterside WT Bill 1  Waugh N Nigel 3 

Kelaher TO Tim 29  Pakalani A Atieli 10  Waugh WW Warwick 58 

Kellaway A Drew 22  Palfreyman JRL   Len 21  Weber JM  John 4 

Kepu SM Sekope 122  Parish HP Harold 8  Westfield RE Bob 6 

Knox DJ David 25  Pauling TG Tom 3  Whitaker CJ * Chris 118 

Kuarté TMK Dashville   Pearse Gk Gary 10  White WJ             Bill 29 

Larnach-Jones GR Rex 7  Penfold RF Ron 1  Whiteside R Robert 1 

Latham CE         Chris 10  Phibbs P Patrick 1  Williams B Brendan 9 

Lay RW Bob 2  Pinkerton S I * Stuart 66  Williams JL John 2 

Lewis RW Bob 2  Piper BJC  Brian 6  Windon CJ * Col 26 

Little AD Arthur 4  Poidevin SP * Simon 58  Windon K S * Keith 16 

Mackay S Shawn 6  Porter BJ Basil 3  Winn CS Charlie 7 

Magro A Adam 4  Potgeiter J Jacques 33  Wright KJ Ken 6 

Malone T Tom 1      Wright T Tim 4 

Malouf BP Bruce 8      Young M Mick 3 

 
 
Captains of NSW [27]  
 
Shaun Berne, Brad Burke, David Campese, Ken Catchpole, Mick Cremin, Tony Daly, Mark Ella, Ted Fahey, 

Huck Finlay, Adam Freier, Pony Galloway, Fred Henlen, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, Mick Murray, Jim 

McMahon, Duncan McRae, Stuart Pinkerton, Simon Poidevin, Vic Richards, Nick Shehadie, Gordon Stone, 

Frank Surman, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Col Windon, Keith Windon 

 

 

Represented Australian Capital Territory [25] 

Matthew Carraro William Gordon Craig McMullen 

Mark Chisholm George Gregan Ben Mowen 

Rocky Elsom Stephen Hoiles Patrick Phibbs 

Frankie Fainifo James Holbeck Josh Valentine 

Gene Fairbanks David J Knox Henry Vanderglas 

Owen D A Finegan Christian Lealiifano Warwick W Waugh 

Scott Flint Shawn Mackay Brendan Williams 

Adam Freier Adam Magro Timothy Wright 

 

Ewen J McKenzie  
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Captains of ACT [5] 

Owen Finegan, George Gregan, Ewen McKenzie, Stephen Hoiles, Ben Mowen 

 

Represented Queensland [5] 

Dayna Edwards, Shawn Mackay, Lukhan Tui, Morgan Turinui, Warwick W Waugh 

 

Represented Victoria [5] 

Kurtley Beale, Adam Freier, Harrison Goddard, Esei Ha’angana, Henry Hutchison 

 

Represented Western Australia [8] 

Cruz Ah-Nau, Phoenix Battye, Nicholas Cummins, Gene Fairbanks, Matt Giteau, Drew Mitchell, 

Mitch Short, Josh Valentine 

 

Represented in Australian Rugby Championship 2007 

Sydney Fleet [9]  S Baker, D Edwards, A Halangahu, C Houston, D Kroll, A Little, J Price, 

M Turinui, M Whittleson 

Canberra Vikings [3]  M Carraro, P Phibbs, T Wright 

Perth Storm [1]  N Cummins 

Melbourne Rebels [1]  S Mackay 

 

 

 

 

 



 

RDRUFC Annual Report 2018   

99 
 

Represented in NRC 2015 

NSW Country Eagles – Jock Armstrong, Toa Asa, Mark Baldwin, Sam Croke, Sam Figg, 

Ned Hanigan, David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, Dashville Kuate, Peter Nau, Jack 

Pennington, Brogan Roods and Mitch Short 

Rams 

Will Munro 

Represented in NRC 2016  

NSW Country Eagles –  Mark Baldwin, Sam Croke, Sam Figg, Ned Hanigan, David 
Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, Will Munro, Reece Robinson, Sonny Satuala, Mitch Short  
 
Rams 

Harrison Goddard, Andrew Tuala 

Represented in NRC 2017 

NSW Country Eagles Lachlan Anderson, Jock Armstrong, Cameron Betham, Sam Croke,  
David Horwitz, Andrew Kellaway, Nick Kellaway, Mitch Short 
 
Sydney Rays Latu Latinipulu, Sonny 
Satuala 
 

 
 
 

 
Melbourne Rising Harrison Goddard, Esei Ha’angana, Henry Hutchison 

 

Represented in NRC 2018

Cameron Betham, Sam Croke, Ben Donaldson, Sam Figg, Harrison Goddard, Will 

Harrison, Jack Hayson, Jack Johnson, Latu Latinipulu, Christian Poidevin, Kiernan Rabie, 

James Ramm, Mitch Short, David Vea 
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Represented Sydney Against National Teams [46] 

John E Berne 1 Omar Hassanein 2 Acura S Niuqila 1 

Shaun Berne 1 Phil Hawthorne 1 Alan Norley 1 

Gavin Boneham 1 Peter G Johnson 5 Gary K Pearse 4 

John E Brass 2 Adrian Jones 1 Stuart Pinkerton 1 

Brad T Burke 1 Eddie Jones 1 Simon P Poidevin 5 

Matthew P Burke 2 Peter Jorgensen 2 Terry Ryan 1 

Kenneth W Catchpole 2 Darren K Junee 2 Phillip V Smith 2 

John W Cole 5 Timothy P Kava 3 Rex Tapuai 1 

Gary A Ella 5 Phillip N Kearns 1 Lei Tomiki 1 

Glen J Ella 6 Timothy P Kelaher 2 Morgan P Turinui 1 

Mark G Ella 6 David J Knox 3 Lloyd J Walker 2 

Ray Evans 1 Arthur Little 1 Warwick W Waugh 3 

Russell L Fairfax 2 Bruce P Malouf 2 John M Weber 2 

Igo Fisher 1 Adrian McDonald 2 Jeffrey Williams 1 

John A Flett 2 Ewen J McKenzie 1 Kenneth J Wright 3 

    Duncan McRae 1     
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2018  Grade Games Played By Individual Players 

  
 

  
         

  2017 2017 
       

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

 Ahkoui  Darren 0 12     3 1 4 0 16 

 Akkersdyke  Dave 0 0     6 3 9 0 9 

 Alaifea  Joey 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Anderson  Lachlan 32 36 6 4     10 38 46 

 Anderson  Will 0 0       4 4 0 4 

 Andrews  Nick 4 35 2 8     10 6 45 

 Armstrong  Jock 35 50   1     1 35 51 

 Ball  Andy 3 27       6 6 3 33 

 Benko  Goran 0 12       4 3 0 15 

 Betham  Cameron 13 13 15       15 28 28 

 Block  Ryan 0 0 2 11 3 1 17 2 17 

 Boileau  Harrison 51 86 2 2 3   7 53 93 

 Bonin  Keiran 0 0       8 8 0 8 

 Brown  Doug 0 29     5 9 14 0 43 

 Brown  Gusi 0 0         0 0 0 

 Burke  Lachlan 0 0       3 3 0 3 

 Burgess  Sam 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Byrne  Shane 0 0 1 10 14 3 28 1 28 

 Carr  Zach 0 0   1   1 2 0 2 

 Collins  Jaeger 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Connor  Sam 1 25 1 5 10 1 17 2 42 

 Cooper  Justin 0 0 6 9     15 6 15 

 Corcoran  Alec 0 2     9 2 11 0 13 

 Corcoran   Ethan 0 0     2 2 4 0 4 

 Croke  Bryan 35 37 7 10     17 42 54 

 Croke  Sam 0 0 9 1     10 9 10 

 Darks  Andy 0 0         0 0 0 

 Day  Lachlan 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Donaldson  Ben 0 0 1       1 1 1 

 Duffy  Tom 0 0         0 0 0 

 Ellerton  Sam 0 0     1 5 6 0 6 

 Ellison  Josh 0 13     5 4 9 0 22 
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  2017 2017 
       

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

 
English  Tom 0 0       11 11 0 11 

 Fainga'anuku  Aisea 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Faoagali  Matthew 0 0     1   1 0 1 

 Ferguson  Drew 1 116       1 1 1 117 

 Fifita  Lisiata 0 31         0 0 31 

 Finch  William 0 15     4 12 16 0 31 

 Freier  Adam 113 148 5   4   9 118 157 

 Frost  Seamus 17 24 7 3     10 24 34 

 Furbank  George 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Gerry - Burgess  Sam 5 43   1 3   4 5 47 

 Gibson  Steve 0 0     3 4 7 0 7 

 Gittoes  Nathan 0 1         0 0 1 

 Goodbody  Tristan 72 101 12 3     15 84 116 

 Gorman  Elliot 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Greico  Scott 0 8       9 9 0 17 

 Harris  Jesse 4 12 2 3 1   6 6 18 

 Harrison  Jack 0 18   2 9 4 15 0 33 

 Harrison  Justin 0 0     1   1 0 1 

 Harrison  Will 0 0 2       2 2 2 

 Harrod  Alex 0 0     3 1 4 0 4 

 Hayson  Jack 0 0 8       8 8 8 

 Hemens  Larry 0 0         0 0 0 

 Hiddleston  Tom 5 70         0 5 70 

 Hills  Alex 0 0 9 5     14 9 14 

 Hodgetts  Patrick 29 157 2 1 9 3 15 31 172 

 Hopkins  Jack 0 0       2 2 0 2 

 Horwitz  David 43 44 5       5 48 49 

 Houlihan  Brad 0 13       1 1 0 14 

 Hoyles  Rob 0 10       1 1 0 11 

 Hunt  Ben 0 0 2 7 2   11 2 11 

 James  Latham 0 0   2 1   3 0 3 

 Johnson  Jack 41 65 10       10 51 75 

 Johnston  Toby 0 56   12 3 1 16 0 72 
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2017 2017 

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

  
Kellaway  Andrew 26 28 5       5 31 33 

 Kellaway  Nick 11 44 2       2 13 46 

 Kennedy  Ed 27 50         0 27 50 

 King Jr  Garth 0 0         0 0 0 

 Kite  Max 0 0       2 2 0 2 

 Knight  Kieran 0 23   3 5 1 9 0 32 

 Koutsoukis  Nick 0 22   6 3 4 13 0 35 

 Latinipulu  Latufonomanu 14 26 14 1     15 28 41 

 Leslie  Henry 1 28   2 8 6 16 1 44 

 Loga - Taroga  Sepesa 0 0   1 13 3 17 0 17 

 Lolo  Sam 2 109     1 1 2 2 111 

 Luxford  Tony 36 90     14 4 18 36 108 

 Macaskill  James 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Marks  Andrew 0 0 4 11 2 2 19 4 19 

 Masibalalavu  Akuila 0 4         0 0 4 

 Matthew  Daniel 0 0 1 1     2 1 2 

 Mayberry  Lewis 0 0         0 0 0 

 McAllister  Alex 0 1         0 0 1 

 McDonogh  Joe 0 0       3 3 0 3 

 McGann   Iain 0 0   4 8 1 13 0 13 

 McGuiggan  Ethan 0 0     7 12 19 0 19 

 McKay  Charlie 0 28   3 9 1 13 0 41 

 McKay  Isaac 0 0   1 4 4 9 0 9 

 McLaughlin  Dougall 0 0       3 3 0 3 

 Mercer  Matt 0 0         0 0 0 

 Meyer  Frank 0 0         0 0 0 

 Mezger  Matt 0 0     4 7 11 0 11 

 Millar  Brady 0 14     7 9 16 0 30 

 Miller  Lachlan 0 0 3 3     6 3 6 

 Miller  Zachary 0 0       7 7 0 7 

 Mohi  Jackson 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Molloy  Tom 3 12   3 1 2 6 3 18 

 Moon  Alexander 0 0 5 1     6 5 6 
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2017 2017 

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

  
Morgan  Ben 0 0     2 11 13 0 13 

 Morkos  Jeremiah 15 50   1 5 6 12 15 62 

 Moschett  Pierre 0 5       3 3 0 8 

 Musgrove  Sam 0 6 1 13 2 1 17 1 23 

 Narayan  Dion 0 0   1 7 7 15 0 15 

 Nowlan  Tom 0 0 12 6     18 12 18 

 O'Donahue  Declan 0 13 1 5     6 1 19 

 Orpen  Matthew 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Paea  Jordan 0 0         0 0 0 

 Page  Max 0 0 9 4   4 17 9 17 

 Paharu  Morehu 0 0       2 2 0 2 

 Parkes  Jackson 0 0       4 4 0 4 

 Pelligrini  Patrick 0 0 2 6 3   11 2 11 

 Pietsch  Dylan 3 6 2 5     7 5 13 

 Peters  Richie 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Peterson  Alex 0 42     1   1 0 43 

 Poea  Jevan 0 0       2 3 0 3 

 Poidevin  Christian 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Powter  Ryan 0 32 1 15 5   21 1 53 

 Puchert  David 0 0 1 12     13 1 13 

 Quinn  Callum 0 0     1 1 2 0 2 

 Rabie  Kieran 0 0 9 2 1 2 14 9 14 

 Rachimovas  Arturas 0 37         0 0 37 

 Ramm  James 0 0 3 1     4 3 4 

 Reilly  Triston 0 0 3 7     10 3 10 

 Rhodes  Tom 0 0     2 7 9 0 9 

 Robbins  Elliot 0 0     1 4 5 0 5 

 Robinson  Ned 0 32   12 3   15 0 47 

 Rollan  Josep Simon 0 0     5 11 16 0 16 

 Roods  Brogan 24 32     1 1 2 24 34 

 Rowntree  Liam 0 0     1 11 12 0 12 

 Rowntree  Luke 2 55   1 1 3 5 2 60 

 Rumble  Paddy 0 0 7 8 1 1 17 7 17 
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2017 2017 

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

 
 
 Sakho  Babro 0 0         0 0 0 

 Sako  Abrahim 0 0     1   1 0 1 

 Satuala  Sonny 14 14 2 4 5 8 19 16 33 

 Serhon  Matt 0 20     3 4 7 0 27 

 Serhon  Tom 0 0   1     1 0 1 

 Short  Mitchell 31 34 8       8 39 42 

 Simi  Jordan 0 0         0 0 0 

 Smith  Liam 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Smith  Sosefo 0 61     2 14 16 0 77 

 Snow  Tom 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Sommers  Ashley 0 0     1 10 11 0 11 

 Starkey  Ben 42 46 16       16 58 62 

 Steyn  Morgan 0 0   1 10 5 16 0 16 

 Stoltz  Devan 13 22 11       11 24 33 

 Streater - 
Mason  Ronald 0 0     5 7 12 0 12 

 Szczudlo  Joel 0 34     2 10 12 0 46 

 Tahaafe  Richmond 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Taie  Lewis 8 70 17       17 25 87 

 Trinkler  Zac 0 0     1 1 2 0 2 

 Tuiqere  Daini 0 1         0 0 1 

 Tupai  Ikapote 0 0 10 9     19 10 19 

 Tyson  Harry 0 0 8 5 1   14 8 14 

 Upton  Jack 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Va'a  Michael 0 0     1   1 0 1 

 Vailaau  Vasa 0 0   2 4 4 10 0 10 

 Vaquerin  Matthias 0 0       2 2 0 2 

 Vasillis  Anthony 0 0 1 2     3 1 3 

 Vea  David 30 59 16 3     19 46 78 

 Vivers  Angus 0 0       1 1 0 1 

 Wilkinson  Nick 0 0 1 5   1 7 1 7 

 Weston  Dave 0 0     1 3 4 0 4 

 Wong  Tom 0 12 2 14     16 2 28 
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2017 2017 

  
Career Career 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Fourth Club First Club 

  
Woodhill  Jum-James 0 0   2   7 9 0 9 

 Wright  Finn 0 0     9 3 12 0 12 

 Wright  William 0 0       2 2 0 2 

 Wright  Willis 0 0       5 5 0 5 

 Yassmin  Christian 0 0 16       16 16 16 
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2018  Colts Games Played By Individual 
Players  

 
 

 
  

        

  
2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Club First Club 

 Antoniades  Michael 0 0   1 3 4 0 4 

 Baillieu  Ed 0 0       0 0 0 

 Baird  Fraser 0 0     7 7 0 7 

 Barnes  Blaise 0 0 12 4 1 17 12 17 

 Bell  Marco 0 0 5     5 5 5 

 Beynon  Guy 0 24   2 15 17 0 41 

 Bouchier  James 0 0     1 1 0 1 

 Cantarella  Sam 0 0   2 13 15 0 15 

 Carr  Zac 5 19 4 12   16 9 35 

 Chipizubov  Dimitry 0 16 10 5 1 16 10 32 

 Collins  Jaeger 0 0   9 5 14 0 14 

 Cornish  Liam 0 0 9     9 9 9 

 Day  Lachlan 9 15 10 4 3 17 19 32 

 Donaldson  Ben 0 0 16     16 16 16 

 Douglass  Will 1 15   12 6 18 1 33 

 Drew -Morris  Lochie 0 0 12 2 1 15 12 15 

 Duckworth  Ben 0 0 2 12   14 2 14 

 Ellis  Joel 0 0 3 11   14 3 14 

 Evans  Duncan 0 0     13 13 0 13 

 Fainga'anuku  Aeisea 0 0   1 9 10 0 10 

 Fuller  Tom 4 5 13     13 17 18 

  
 
Geraghty  Fionn 0 0   1 11 12 0 12 

 Gibson  Fiu 0 4 15     15 15 19 

 Gollan  Kel 0 0     8 8 0 8 

 Gray  Sam 0 0   2 5 7 0 7 

 Gulliver  James 0 0 8 2 1 11 8 11 

 Harrison  Will 0 13 8     8 8 21 

 Holben  Jack 0 0   2 2 4 0 4 

 Houston  Ben 0 0 12 5   17 12 17 

 Howard  Benjamin 0 0   7 11 18 0 18 

 Hoy  Carter 0 16     2 2 0 18 
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2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Club First Club 

 Katsogiannis  Nick 0 0   6 9 15 0 15 

 Kearns  Finn 0 0   7 2 9 0 9 

 Kormanyos  Dean 0 10     10 10 0 20 

 Leaney  Declan 0 0   11 8 19 0 19 

 Lynch  William 0 0   1 15 16 0 16 

 Lynch  Posesione 0 0   3 13 16 0 16 

 Macaskill  James 0 16   9 6 15 0 31 

 Mahoney   Oliver 0 0   2 6 8 0 8 

 Manoa  Tuitavake 0 0 9   1 10 9 10 

 Matthew  Daniel 10 13 13     13 23 26 

 Maui  Mataroa 0 0   13   13 0 13 

 McCormick  Will 0 0 4 12 1 17 4 17 

 McCue  Hamish 0 0     10 10 0 10 

 McGrath  Jai 0 0     1 1 0 1 

 McNeill  James     5 11 5 21 5 21 

 Mohi  Jackson 1 2 15     15 16 17 

 Nicol  David 0 0 7 10   17 7 17 

 Nikau  Sione 1 22   9 3 12 1 34 

 O'Riley  Lachlan 0 0     5 5 0 5 

 Orpen  Matt 6 19 1 14   15 7 34 

 O'Sullivan  Ben 0 8 5 5 3 13 5 21 

 
 
 Poidevin  Christian 12 18 16     16 28 34 

 Prince  Cam 5 14 3 3 1 7 8 21 

 Quinn  Callum 9 21 3 13   16 12 37 

 Ramm  James 17 25 4     4 21 29 

 Reid   Jack 0 0   1 7 8 0 8 

 Rewitt  Michael 0 0   2 14 16 0 16 

 Searl  Darcy 0 0 12 3 1 16 12 16 

 Serhon  Tom 13 18 13   1 14 26 32 

 Size  Connor 0 0 5   1 6 5 6 

 Smith  Harrison 0 0     9 9 0 9 

 Smith  Liam 0 0   3 6 9 0 9 

 Snow  Tom 0 0     8 8 0 8 
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2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 Career Career 

Last Name First Name First Club First Second Third Club First Club 

 Szabo  Daniel 0 0   1 6 7 0 7 

 Tahaafe  Richmond 0 6     6 6 0 12 

 Tautaiolefua  Byron 0 0   2 4 6 0 6 

 Tautaiolefua  Kereti 0 0 14   6 20 14 20 

 Upton  Jack 1 15 14     14 15 29 

 Vazouras  Nathanael 0 0   6 8 14 0 14 

 Vivers  Angus 1 12 4 6 2 12 5 24 

 Wallace  Lachlan 0 0   3 2 5 0 5 

 Weatherall  Harry 0 0     1 1 0 1 

 White  Jonty 0 0   5 6 11 0 11 

 Wilkinson  Nick 0 0 7     7 7 7 

 Williams  Yiribi-Jaffer 5 10 1     1 6 11 

 Wright  Finn 0 0   3   3 0 3 

 Yoannidis  Jaya 1 18 6 12   18 7 36 

 Zissis  Julian 0 0 5 3   8 5 8 
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2018 Cumulative Points Scored by Individual Grade Players 
 

    
                  

    
                  

  
2018 First Grade 2018 Second Grade 2018 Third Grade 2018 Fourth Grade 2018 Season Totals 

Last Name First Name T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

 Ahkoui  Darren       0       0 2     10 1     5 3 0 0 15 

 Anderson  Lachlan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Andrews  Nic       0 3     15       0       0 3 0 0 15 

 Armstrong  Jock       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Ball  Andy       0       0       0 1 1   7 1 1 0 7 

 Betham  Cameron       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Block  Ryan       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Bonin  Keiran       0       0       0 3     15 3 0 0 15 

 Brown  Doug       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Burgess  Sam       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Burke  Lachlan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Byrne  Shane       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Carr  Zac       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Connor  Sam       0       0 4     20       0 4 0 0 20 

 Cooper  Justin       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Corcoran  Alec       0       0 2     10       0 2 0 0 10 

 Croke  Bryan   8 1 19 1 26 5 72   3   6       0 1 37 6 97 

  
Croke  Sam 

4     20       0       0       0 4 0 0 20 
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 Darks  Andy       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Day  Lachlan       0   1   2       0       0 0 1 0 2 

 Duffy  Tom       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Ellerton  Sam       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Ellison  Josh       0       0 3     15 1     5 4 0 0 20 

 English  Tom       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Ferguson  Drew       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Fifita  Lisiata       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Finch  William (Billy)       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Freier  Adam 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Frost  Seamus 5     25       0       0       0 5 0 0 25 

 Gerry - Burgess  Sam       0       0 3     15       0 3 0 0 15 

 Gibson  Steve       0       0 1     5 2     10 3 0 0 15 

 Gittoes  Nathan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Goodbody  Tristan 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Greico  Scott       0       0       0 2     10 2 0 0 10 

 Harris  Jesse       0 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Harrison  Jack       0 1     5   2 2 10 1 5 1 18 2 7 3 33 

 Hayson  Jack 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Hemmens  Larry       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Hiddleston  Tom       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Hills  Alex 2     10       0       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Hodgetts  Patrick       0       0 1     5 1     5 2 0 0 10 
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 Horwitz  David   7 1 17       0       0       0 0 7 1 17 

 Hoyles  Rob       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Hunt  Ben       0 5     25       0       0 5 0 0 25 

 Johnson  Jack 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Johnston  Toby       0 9     45 1     5       0 10 0 0 50 

 Kellaway  Andrew 2 1   12       0       0       0 2 1 0 12 

 Kellaway  Nick 2     10       0       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Kennedy  Ed       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Knight  Kieran       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Koutsoukis  Nick       0 1     5 2     10       0 3 0 0 15 

 Latinipulu  Latufonomanu 3     15 1     5       0       0 4 0 0 20 

 Leslie  Henry       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Loga - Taroga  Sepesa       0       0 5     25       0 5 0 0 25 

 Luxford  Tony       0       0 3     15 2     10 5 0 0 25 

 Malibalavalu  Akuila       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Marks  Andrew       0 8     40 1     5 1     5 10 0 0 50 

 Mayberry  Lewis       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 McAllister  Alex       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 McDonagh  Joseph       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 McGann  Iain       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 McKay  Charlie       0 1     5 3     15       0 4 0 0 20 

 Mckay  Isaac       0 
 

    0 4     20 
 

    0 4 0 0 20 

 Mercer  Matt       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 
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 Meyer  Frank       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Millar  Brady       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Miller  Lachlan       0 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Molloy  Tom       0       0 1     5 1     5 2 0 0 10 

 Morgan  Ben       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Moschett  Pierre       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Musgrove  Sam       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Narayan  Dion       0 1     5 3 4   23 2 7 1 27 6 11 1 55 

 Nowlan  Tom       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 O'Donahue  Declan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Paea  Jordan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Page  Max       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Pahuru  Morehu       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Parkes  Jackson       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Pelligrini  Patrick       0 1 2   9 1 11 1 30       0 2 13 1 39 

 Peterson  Alex       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Pietsch  Dylan 1     5 1     5       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Powter  Ryan       0 3     15       0       0 3 0 0 15 

 Puchert David       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Rabie  Kieran 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Rachimovas  Arturas       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Rakic  Jake       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Ramm  James 2     10 1     5       0       0 3 0 0 15 
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 Reilly  Triston 1     5 6     30       0       0 7 0 0 35 

 Rhodes  Tom       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Robbins  Elliot       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Robinson  Ned       0 4     20       0       0 4 0 0 20 

 Rollan  Josep Simon       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Roods  Brogan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Rowntree  Liam       0       0       0 2 2   14 2 2 0 14 

 Rowntree  Luke       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Rumble  Paddy       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Sakhu  Babro       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Sako  Abrahim       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Satuala  Sonny       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Serhon  Matt       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Short  Mitchell 2     10       0       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Simi  Jordan       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Smith  Sosefo       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Snow  Tom       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Starkey  Ben 4     20       0       0       0 4 0 0 20 

 Steyn  Morgan       0       0 2 30 7 91 1 5 2 21 3 35 9 112 

 Stoltz  Devon 1     5       0       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Streater - Mason  Ronald       0       0 3     15 1     5 4 0 0 20 

 Szczudlo  Joel       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Taie  Lewis       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 
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 Trinkler  Zac       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Tuiqere  Daini       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Tupai  Ikapote       0 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 

 Tyson  Harry   17 11 67 3 7 1 32   2   4       0 3 26 12 103 

 Vailaau  Vasa       0       0 3     15 1     5 4 0 0 20 

 Vaquerin  Matthias       0       0       0       0 0 0 0 0 

 Vasillis  Anthony       0       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 

 Vea  David 3     15 1     5       0       0 4 0 0 20 

 Vivers  Angus       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Weston  David       0       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 

 Wilkinson  Nick       0 1     5       0 1 2   9 2 2 0 14 

 Wright  Finn       0       0 3     15       0 3 0 0 15 

 Wong  Tom       0 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 

 Woodhill  Jum -James       0       0       0 2     10 2 0 0 10 

 Yassmin  Christian 11     55       0       0       0 11 0 0 55 

 Penalty Try   1 1   7       0 1 1   7 2     14 4 2 0 28 
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2018 Cumulative Points  
Scored by Individual Colts Players 

    
                  

    
                  

Last Name 
First 
Name 

First Grade 
Second Grade Third Grade 2018 Season Totals Career Totals 

    T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT T G P/FG TOT 

 Baird  Fraser       0       0 3 12   39 3 12 0 39 3 12 0 39 

 Barnes  Blaise 14     70 8 13   66 1 1   7 23 14 0 143 23 14 0 143 

 Bell  Marco 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Beynon  Guy       0   1   2 1     5 1 1 0 7 1 1 0 7 

 Carr  Zac       0 8 20 1 83       0 8 20 1 83 8 20 1 83 

 Chipizubov  Dimitri 4 6   32 7 12   59       0 11 18 0 91 18 23 0 136 

 Collins  Jaeger       0 1     5 1     5 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Cornish  Liam 4     20       0       0 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20 

 Day   Lachlan 4 45   110 4 7   34 3 4   23 11 56 0 167 26 123 1 379 

 Donaldson  Ben 10 24   98       0       0 10 24 0 98 11 24 0 103 

 Douglass  Will       0 9     45 1 1   7 10 1 0 52 10 1 0 52 

 Drew - 
Morris 

 Lochie 7   
  35 

    
  0 

    
  0 

7 0 
0 35 

7 0 
0 35 

 Duckworth  Ben       0 7     35       0 7 0 0 35 7 0 0 35 

 Ellis  Joel       0 5     25       0 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25 

 Evans  Duncan       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 
Fainga'anuku  Aisea 

    
  0 

1   
  5 

3 1 
  17 

4 1 
0 22 

4 1 
0 22 

 Fuller  Tom 7     35       0       0 7 0 0 35 7 0 0 35 

 Gray  Sam       0     1 3 2     10 2 0 1 13 2 0 1 13 

 Gulliver  James 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Harrison  Will 5 13   51       0       0 5 13 0 51 5 13 0 51 

 Houston  Ben 6     30 4     20       0 10 0 0 50 10 0 0 50 
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 Howard  Benjamin       0 1     5 1 1   7 2 1 0 12 2 1 0 12 

 James  Latham 1     5 1     5       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Kassulke  Harmon       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 
Katsogiannis 

 Nick     
  0 

1   
  5 

2   
  10 

3 0 
0 15 

3 0 
0 15 

 Kearns  Finn       0 1     5 1     5 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Leaney  Declan       0 2     10 2     10 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20 

 Lynch  Posesione       0       0 4     20 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20 

 Macaskill  James       0 3     15 2     10 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25 

 Mahoney  Oliver       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 Matthew  Dan 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 Maui  Mataroa 2     10 6 9   48       0 8 9 0 58 8 9 0 58 

 McCormick  William       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 McNeill  James 1     5 3     15 1     5 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25 

 Mohi  Jackson 23 1   117       0       0 23 1 0 117 23 1 0 117 

 Nicol  David 4     20 4     20       0 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 

 O'Riley  Lachlan       0       0 2     10 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Orpen  Matthew       0 3     15       0 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 

 O'Sullivan  Ben 2     10 4     20       0 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 

 Poidevin  Christian 9     45       0       0 9 0 0 45 9 0 0 45 

 Prince  Cam       0 2     10       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Quinn  Callum       0 2     10       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Ramm  James 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Rewitt  Michael       0       0 3     15 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 

 Searl  Darcy 4 1   22 1 8   21   1   2 5 10 0 45 5 10 0 45 

 Serhon  Tom 9     45       0       0 9 0 0 45 9 0 0 45 

 Size 
 Conor 
Terah 

2 1 
  12 

    
  0 

1 2 
  9 

3 3 
0 21 

3 3 
0 21 

 Smith  Harrrison       0       0 3     15 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 
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 Snow  Tom 

    

  0 

    

  0 

1   

  5 

1 0 

0 5 

1 0 

0 5 

 Stead  Matthew 2     10 6     30       0 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 

 Stein  Harrison       0 2     10       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Szabo  Daniel       0       0 2     10 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Tahaafe  Richmond       0       0 2     10 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 

 Tautaiolefua  Kereti 4     20       0 1     5 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25 

 Tautaiolefua  Byron       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 Upton  Jack 2     10       0       0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

 Vazouras  Nathanael       0 1     5       0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 Vivers  Angus       0 1     5 1     5 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 

 Wallace  Lachlan       0       0 1     5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 White  Jonty       0 5     25 2     10 7 0 0 35 7 0 0 35 

 Wilkinson  Nick 3     15       0       0 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 

 Yoannidis  Jaya 3     15 8     40       0 11 0 0 55 11 0 0 55 

 Zissis  Julian 1     5       0       0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

 PENALTY TRY       0 1 1   7       0 1 1 0 7 1 1 0 7 

  
126 91 0 812 114 58 2 692 46 10 0 250 304 185 2 1896 329 257 3 2168 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc 

Member Information Form 

Membership Classifications 

Honorary Life Member   (   ) Qualification as per By-law 6 

Playing Member   (   ) Must be a current player 

Ordinary Member   (   ) Past player, Councillor, other official or volunteer 

Associate Member   (   ) Former player or official (any club); supporter of rugby 

Tick in the parentheses beside each classification for which you are a Member 

          Personal Details 

 
          First name_______________Middle name(s)__________________Surname_____________________ 

 
          Member Years__________DOB________________Occupation________________________________ 

 
Address____________________________________________State__________Postcode___________ 

Phone (H)________________Phone (M)__________________ Phone (W)________________________ 

Email_______________________________________________________________________________ 

For all of the following information, please supply years 

Rugby Awards (Club B&F, Wally Meagher Trophy, Life Member NSWRU, …) __________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Playing Record 

Juniors______________________________________________________________________________ 

School_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Colts________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Grade_______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Representative (schools, NSW, Australia,….)________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other ________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
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         Coaching/Managing Record 

Juniors_______________________________________________________________________________ 

School(s)_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Colts________________________________________________________________________ 

Randwick Grade(s)_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Representative (schools, NSW, Australia,….)________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Administration 

Randwick_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other (NSW, Australia,…)_______________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other Categories (Randwick & Elsewhere: promotion, sponsorship, mentor, …) ___________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Signature___________________________Name__________________________Date________________ 

          
         The information you have supplied will be added to the Member Database of the Randwick DRUFC. The       
          Database will be updated regularly. Completed forms are to be returned to the Club Secretary. 

 
 

 

Office Use Only 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 


